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INOEPEI.IDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
the Municlpal Legislature
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado
Do6do. Puerto Rlco

Report on the Financlal Slatements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major

fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Autonomous Munlclpality of Dorado, Puerto

Rico (Municipality), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise the Munlclpality's basic financial statements, as listed in the

table of contents.

Managemenfs Responsibility tor the Financlal Stalements

lvlanagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accountang principles generally accepted in the United State of America; this includes

the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of linancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit We

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America and the standarcls applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of united States. Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statemenls. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment of risks of material misstalement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

ln making those risk assessments, the auditor conside6 internal control relevanl to the entity's
preparalion and fair presentation of the financial statements in order lo design audit procedures that

ire appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and lhe reasonableness of

signiflcant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluatingthe overall presentation of

the financial statements.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinions.

Calt. Paran6 !1686. El Ccrezal. San Juatr. P R 009.15'-1144 Tcl. (187) 777-E041 Fax (7s7) ?61'9li?
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Opinions

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate

remaining fund information of the Municlpality's as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in

financial position, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

Other Matters

Requied Su p plementa ry lnformation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the lJnited States ofAmerica require that the Management's
Discussion and Anal)sis on pages 4 through 12 and Budgetary Comparison information on page 65' be

presented to supplement the basic financaal statements. such information, although not a part of the

basic financial statements, is required bythe Govern menta I Accou nting Stan da rds Board' who considers

it to be an essential part of financial re@rting for placing the basic financial statements in an

appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to

the required supplementary informataon in accordance with auditingstandards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of anquiries of management about the methods of preparing

the information and comparing the information for consistency wath managements responses to our

inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during oua audit ofthe basic

financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information

because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provade any assurance.

Uhet lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the Autonomous fulunicipallty of Dorado's basic financial statements The

accompanying supplementary information Financlal Data Schedules shown in pages 67 and 68 are

presented for purposes of additional analt6is as required by the tl.S. Department of Housing and Urban

Development, Office of the lnspeclor General, and is not a required part of the financial statemenls'

The accompanying supplementary information - Schedule of Expenditures of FederalAwards shown in
pages 70 and 71 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of

lva;agement and Budget Circular A_133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non_Profit

Organizations, and is also not a required pan ofthe basicfinancial statements.

The Financial Data Schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility

of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other

records used to prepare the basic financial statements Such information has been subjected to the

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting

and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted

in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the Financial Data Schedules and the Schedule of

Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.

Lipez-Vesa, CPA, PS(

Ac.ollfuB / Man.A6E Advisct



INDEPENOENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditlng Standards

tn accordance wilh Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report daled lvlarch 28,

2014, on our consideration of the Municipallu's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracG, and grant agreements and

other matters. The purpose of thal report is to describe the scope of our tesling of internal control over

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on

internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audat
peformed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Municipality's internal
control over fina ncia I reporting and compliance.

,/y,t&',n u
LOPEZ.VEGA CPA, PSC

San Juan, Pueno Rico
March 28,2Ot4

Stamp No.2675832 ofthe Puerto Rico
Society of cenified Public Accountants
was atflxed to the record copy of this report.

I,6pez-Vega, CPA , PSC

Cenified Public Ac@nbts / Mllag.tum Advso6



a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Aulonomous Municipality of Dorado (Municipality), we offer readers
of the Municipality's basic financial statements this narrative overyiew and analysis of the
financialactivities ofthe Municipality as ofand forthe fiscatyear ended June 30,2013. This
N4anagement's Discussion and Anatysis (MD&A) includes comparative data, and it has been
designed accordingly with the following goals:

Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues;

Provide an overview ofthe N4unicipality's financial activity;

ldentify changes in the Municipality's financial position (its abality to address
the next and subsequent year challenges);

ldentify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget,)
and;

ldentify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the MD&A is designed to focus on the current year activities, resulting changes and
currently known facts, please read it in conlunction with the Municipality's financial
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGI{TS

. The N4unicipality net position increased by $6,397,180 (8%).

. ln the fund financial statements, the governmental activities revenues decreased

$7,427,26A \or 4yo) and governmental activities expenditures increased $1,603,840
(o. 4%).

. The General Fund (the primary operating fund) reflected, on a current financial
resource basis, a decrease of $658,766.

. On a budgetary basis, actual revenues exceeded actual expenditures by $200,364.

. The Municipality issued bonds amounting to $6,11O,OOO, for acquisition of
properties and construction and improvement of municipal facilities and roads.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the
focus from previous financial statements. The new focus is on both the Municipality as a
whole (government-wide) and the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-
wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for
comparison (year to year or government to government) and enhance the l/unicipality's
accountability.

covernment-Wide Financial Siatements

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide users of the financial
statements with a broad overview of the Municipality's finances in a manner similar to
privat+sector companies.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the l\,lunicipality's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between both reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whetherthe financial position of
the N4unicipality is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the lvlunicipality's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement of Activities
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The Statement of Activities is

focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the
government's general tax and other revenues. This is intended to summarize and simplify
the user's analysis of cost ofvarious governmental services.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Municipality's most
significant funds, not the Municipality as a whole. The Municipality has only one kind of fund
which is the governmental fund.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the Government Wide Financial Statements.

COMMONWEALTH OF Pt,ERTO
AUTONOMOUS MU}IICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND AXALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

However, unlike the Government Wide Financial Statements, Government Fund Financial
Statements, focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year, Such information as

useful in evaluatingthe Municipality's near term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government wide
financial statements. By doing so, users of the basic financial statements may better
understand the long-term impact of the Municipality's near term financial decisions. Both of
the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental adivities.

lnlrastructure Assets

Historically, a significant group of infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges, traffic
signals, underground pipes not associated with utilities, have not been recognized nor
depreciated in the accounting records of the Municipality. GASB 34 requires that such type
of assets be inventoried, valued ad reported under the governmental column of the
Government-Wide Statement. As of July l, 2OO2, the Municipality commenced the
prospective reporting of infrastructure assets, and reported historical costs for such assets
in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007.

According to the requirements of GASB 34, the government must elect to either
(a)depreciate the aforementioned assets over their estimated useful life of (b) develop a
system of asset management design to maintain the service delivery to near perpetuity. lf
the government develops the asset management system, (the modified approach) which
periodically (at least every three years), by category, measures and demonstrate its
maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may record
its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. ln this particular respect, the municipality has
elected the use of recognizing depreciation under the useful life method and it contemplates
to continue this treatment on said basis.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OFTHE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

The Statement of Net Position seryes as an important indicator of the Municipality's

financial position atthe end ofthe fiscal year. tn the case of the Autonomous Municipality of
Dorado, primary government assets exceeded total liabilities by $91,32L,147 at the end of

2013, as compared with $84,983,967, as restated, which reflect an increase of

$6,397,180, over previous fiscal year. The following condensed Statement of Net Position

of the Primary Government shows on a comparative basis the most important components

of the $6,397,1a0 increase reflected in the Net position figure.

condensed statement of Net Position 20L3 20!2 Change

curentand other assets

current and other liabillies

lnvested in caPital assets, net of related

$ 32,202,603
137,576,530

169,779,133

$ 30,392,072 $1,810,531pa,760,500 8,816,030

t59,152,572 10,626,561

6%

7ra

70%

6%

10374,L73
68,079,813

9,46a,069
64,760.536

910,104
3,319,277

4,229,34178,457,986 14,224,605

84347,530

25,110,o32
122,L36,4a5)

$ 9!,32!,t47

83,039,500

24,397,323
(22,572,4541

$ 84,923,967

5,308,030

712,709
376,441

$6,397,180

6%

3%

80a

5200,000,000

sls0,000,000

Smo,om,ooo

5s0,000,000

t2013

.2072

5
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Position

The Municipality's net position increase by $6,397,180, Approximately sixty two percent
(62%) of the Municipality's total revenue came from taxes, while thirty two percent (32%)

resultedfromgrantsandcontributions,includingfederal aid. Charges for Sewices provided

one percent (1%) of the total revenues. lnterest earnings two percent (27o) and

miscellaneous provided two percent (2%) of the total revenues. The Municipality's expenses

cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for general government, public works
and health and welfare. As follow, is presented a comparative analysis of government-wide

data. ln this analysis was determined the percentage change in revenues and expenditures
from prior year to current year.

Condensed Statement of Actlvilies

operating g6nts and contributions
capital gra nts and contributions

I\4unicipal license tax
M unicipal sa les and use Gx
crants and contributions not

restr cted to specinc programs

lnterest and investment earnings

Culture and recreation
Economic development
Comm unity delelopment

lnterest on ong'term debt

Change n net postion
Net position, beginning as restated
Net position, end of year

20L3 20L2 change

$ 552,a47
9,135.752

311,356

16,129,651
3,970,833
2,74a,670

3,035,750
444,927
707,933
583,975

$ 357,919
9,246,344

455,455

15,850,427
3,766,231
2,056,125

236a,548
1,2L9,742

526,599
593,590

$ 194,928 54%
(150,632) 2%
(144,099) -32'A

279,224
204,596
685,545

667.202
(334,455)
1a1334

(9,615)

2%
5%

33%

2a%
27%
34%

20a

38,O54,694 36,4a1,066 1,573,624 4%

15,092,998
1,876,413

1a0,736
6,921,573
2,496,027

140,515
L,244,239

85,337

3,619,676
31.657,514

!2,969,294
2,OA2,919
a,402,tal
7,453,160

425,79L
120,563
220,305
634,980

4,1o2
2,016,410

-- 3t@7'5-

2,123,700 t6%
(206,506) -tO%

\a,22!,451) 9A%
(531,587) -T%

2,070,236 486%
19,952 t7%

1,023,934 465%
(549,643)

(4.102) 100%
1,603,266 AOrA----Oiirdn 8%

6,397,1a0 2,151,351 4,245,429
a4.923,967 A2,772,616 2,151.351

f91.321,147 $ 84,923,967 s 6,397,180

\9-t%
3%
8%

8

COMMONWIALTH OF PUERTO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALI|Y OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT DISCUISION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OFTHE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Revenues 2013 t Charges for services

t Operating grants and

a capital grants and contributions

a Other local taxes

aMuni€ipalsales and use tax

ta Mu nicipal license tax

9Grants and contributions not
restricted to spe€ific proSrams

Expenses 2013
a General government

lCulture and recreation

a Health and welfare

r Community development

9lnterest on lont term debt

EUrban development

t lnterest in lon8'term debt

o.57%

9

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013



FINANCIAL ANALYSTS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the lvunicipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term

inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in

assessing the llunicipality's financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance

may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported

combined ending fund balances of $26,433,001, an increase of $1,378,462 in comparison

with the prior'year, as restated. There are reservations of fund balance amounting to
$25,7f0,O32. The combined fund balances include restricted fund balance amounting to
$24,47 f ,L52. This is the fund balance that it is not available for new spending because it
has already been committed 1) to pay debt service $9,949,676, 2) to pay for capital
projects $12,791,491and 3)for other purposes $1,729,985. There are nonspendable fund
balance amounting to $493,179, and assigned fund balance of $145,701, that represent
resources for specific purposes but do not meet the definition to be classified as restricted
or committed (generally executive orders approved by the Mayor) to pay for capital projects.

As of June 30, 2013, the General Fund, which is the main operating fund of the Municipality,

reflected an unassigned fund balance of $1,322,969.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the Municipality Legislature revised the lVunicipality's budget in

order to include increases in revenues that were identified during the course of the fiscal

year based on current developments that positively affected the Municipality's finances.

lncreases in budgeted expenditures were also made since the law mandates a balanced

budget.

10
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CAPITAL ASSEIS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CapitalAsseis

The Municipality's investment in capital assets for Governmental Activities as of lune 30,
2013 amounts to $162,074,764 with an accumulated depreciation of $26,964,727 '
leaving a net book value of $135,110,637. For Business - Type Activities investments in

capital assets as of June 30, 2013 amounts to $3,971,648, with an accumulated
depreciation of $1,505,755, leaving a net book value of $2,465'893. This investment in

capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure and

construction in progress. tnfrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and

of value only to the state, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems,

lighting systems, and similar items.

The total increase in the lvlunicipality's investment in capital assets in the current fiscal year

was about 6% in terms of net book value. Depreciation charges for the year totaled

$2,225,594.

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond

issuances. The proceeds from bond issuances designated for construction activities are

committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes. As

of June 30, 2013, the Municipality has $8,820,638 of unexpended proceeds from bond

issuances that are committed to future construction activities in Governmental Activities and

$106,682 in Business-Type Activities.

Debi Adminislration

The Pueno Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general

obligation municipal bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and

taxing power of each municipality may be pledged.

The applicable law also requires that in order for a Municipality to be able to issue additional
general obligation bonds and notes such Municipality must have sufficient "payment

capacity".

Act No. 64 provides that a municipality has sufficient "payment capacity" to incur additional
general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality's Redemption Fund and the

annual amounts collected with respect to such Municipality's Special Additional Tax (as

defined below), as projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service to maturity the
Municipality's outstanding general obligation debt and the additional proposed general

obligation debt ("Payment Capacaty").

!1-
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\

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION. (CONTINUED):

The Municipality is required under applicable law to lely the Special Additional Tax in such
amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds and
notes. ln addition, principal of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and
notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the issuance of general obligation
bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the lvunicipality's Basic Tax
revenues. Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make
debt service payments on general obligation

Municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additionat Tax tevied by the
Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption Fund, are
not sufficient to cover such debt service. lt has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes
to pay debt service on general obligation debt of the lVunicipality.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGEIS AND RATES

Ihe Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal grants to
carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been
very predictable with increases of approximately five percent. Federal grant revenues may
very if new grants are available but the revenue also is very predictable. Those factors were
considered when preparing Municipality's budgetfor the fiscal year 20L3-2OL3.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer,
customers, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances
and to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability. lfyou have questions about the report
or need additional financial information, contact the Municipality's Chief Financial Officer at
PO Box 588, Dorado, Puerto Rico 00646{588, Telephone (787) 796-1230.

a2
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Assets
casn and 6h eq0ivatents

Municip€l li@nes taxes

tand, improvemenls, and construction in progress

othe. @pital agts, net o, depreiarion

Totala$6ts

Liabilities
A@unts payable and accrued liabilit'es

Due to ooer governmental entilies

Fedefal grani reven06

Doe in moE tha. one year

Total llabllltles

Net Po6ition
Ner inBtment in capital assets

Total net position

11,262,143

20,2!6,945

16,694

114,579

23.946

!25,204
45,561

99,147,601

35,963,036

290,165

106.642

344,790

2,471,103

!!,552,944
20,323,667

16,694

114,579

23,946

125,204

45,561

99,536,391

38,040,139

135.110,637 2.2165,493 137,576,530

166,915,793 2,463,340 169,779,133

4,940,619

364,614

3,595,523

204,706

\.271,O21

4.206,954

63,344,459

11.690

15o,0oo

334,O00

4,94O,619

364,614

3,595,523

204,706

1,228,711

4,356,954

63,122,859

17,962,296 495,690 78,457 986

46,365,637

12,791,49r,

9,949,676

2364,465

122,522,172)

1.941893

345,757

44,347,530

12,79!,491
9,949,676

2,364,465

122,136,415)

$ aa,953,497 s 2,367,650

Ihe notesto the flnan cia I statements are an integral part of thrs statements.

91,32!,147
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Tolal Fund AahlB ' Govemmntal Funds

Amounts repofted for ooEnmental Activiti6 in the $atement oa Net Fositron

Capital asts u*d in go€rnmemal adlvti6 aG not financiat r6our6 and therefo.e,
are not Eponed in tne lunds. ln 1he curGnt pe od, tn6e amounts a.e:

26.433,001

135,110,637

13,777,3O7)

Non deprecBble.apfta a$ets
Dep@ciabte 6prat a$ets
Accumu aied depreaton

$ 99,147,601

62,927,163

126.964,127)

249.556

221,349
2,745,550

392,975
1,970343

Torat6p at6els

some of the Muni.ipalivs re@nues will be collected afte, year end bd ae not alailable
sn enough to pay lor the clRent penod'is expenditu.e and therefore, ae defetred in

const uction Ercie Td

A@unts paJ€Dle a@umulated aeordi^g to the ectual b€sis ot a@unting. tn 1he curent
pe od thoe &@unts payable amoum b:

Some liabilities are rc1 due a^d pay6ble in the curot leriod and $ereto€, are not

eported rn the funds. Th@ liabilitiB @.sist ot:

Generarbonds and not6 paFbte

Propeny taxes debt - Law 146

Pmpefty taxes debt - Law 42

Totat tong.lem tiabi it es

Accrued interesl payable aE not due and payaHe in lhe curent penod and lherelore.
aE nol eponed in lhetunds. Those inlereslpayable amounl to:

Toial et PGilhn ol cov6mmentd A.titities

(67,595,41:l)

(1,217,021)

$ aa,953,497

The noies lo ihe financial statemenis are an inlegralparl ofthis slaiement 18

Commonweallh of Puerto Rico

Autonomous Municipality of Dorado

Reconciliation ot the EalanceSheet- covernmental Funds
to the Statement ot Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30.2013



llei Ch.nEB in Fund BdalE - Tot.l Gd.rnmedar Funds $

Amounts EDoned for go@hmental adivitiE in the statement of Activnres are difleent beau*:

Go@mmenral FuMs eDon 6pnd ourbls as expenditu@s. Ho@@r, in tne Govemmeat wide starement of Activities and

chang6 in Net posnroa, the 6st of th@ ase15 s all@ated der then estimatd u*ful liv6 as depr4iation spense.

This is the amount of epiial assets Eco.ded in the cuiient pe.lod.

c{w.nmenbl Funds rcport caprtal as!€1s eld as Gvenu6. Horeter, in the Govemment'wide statement of activnies and

changes in Net posnron, Disposl of @pital asts requne Em@al of Mt of the capital tgts from the €pital asts
a@unt on the Goemmenlwide siatemem of Net pcton.

Depeciation Elpefl* on Cap(al Asts is epotted in the Go@hment wrde stalements of A.tivni6 6nd change ln Net

Position. but lhey do not .equne the u* of curent iinancial leurc6. Therefoe Dep@iaiion expene is not rcponed ts

exF€dditur6 in Govemmental Flnds Financial $atements.

lnteEst Erpene change is .eponed m fie G@emment'wide statement of ,.nvtti6 and change ifl Ner positDn. bli not

require the u* of cureft nnancial reeurcB. TherEloE. lnte.6r erpene change is not epofted as expendilurE in

Go€nmental Funds Financial $atements.

Ac@unls palrbb cnange is .eponed in fie Govemment'wide statement of Activities and change in Net position but not

Eponed as in the Gryernmemal Flnds, becau* fie, do noi requne fie use ot clrent rinancial reeur@' This is rhe

amoum rcported in the cu.Ent pe od.

Long tem debt isuarcE arc reported in ihe Go@rnment_wide starement of Net posnion but not @quire fie ue ol

cure finarcial Eeur.6- Thereto@, Long term debt i$uances aE not €poned as expendturA in Govemmental F nds

Long tem debts paFents arc @pofted as expenditu@s in the Go@mfiental Funds Financial Statemenls which requie

the ts of .udent ,inancial reures. The€iore Lon! lem debt par{sents are not Epoited as expenditu@s in l'E

Go@mmenlwide staGment ol Activiti6 and change in Net pcition.

1,3T4,462

(2,135,397)

17,217,021)

9,039

(156)

(s7,013)

5,736

Bonds Doceeds provide cu(ent linancial r6oures to Governmenta! Funds but ssurng debt incteae long tem liab litres

in fie G@mment-wide statement of Net pcrtro.. fiepavment of bond prircDalis an expenditure in Govehmental Funds,

bul the epaynent redues oig tem labiiti6 in ihe Governmenlwide statement oi Net posiilon.Thrs istheamountbv

whchthe debt preeeds exced the debt seto ce p ncipalpavments.

change ln Net politlon o, Govnm.rlal aclMli6

(2,744,0O0)

The not6 toihelinancial $arementsare an integ€l panolthis siatement 19

Reconclliation ol th€ Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Clanges in Fund Ealances

of Puerto Rico Covemmental Funcls to tle Statement of Activities
For th€ Year Ended June 30. 201:|Mrnicipality of Dorado



Activitiy
Enterprise

Assets

Curent Assets:

Cash and c€sh equivalents

Cash with fiscal agenl

Total current assets

CapitalAssets:
Property, and equipment:

Building

Accumulated depreciation

Total nonturrent assets

Liabllllles
Curenl Uabilitles:

Total curent liabilities

Non-cunert liabllitres:

Due within one year

Due in morethan oneyear

Toral nonrurrent liabilities

l{et Position

lnvested in Capitalassets, net of related debt

Total l{et Pocition

290,765
to6,6a2

397,447

384,790
3,582,858
(1,505,755)

2,465,493

2,863,340

11,690

11,690

150,000
334,000

484,OOO

495,690

!941493
385,757

The notes to the financ alstatements are an inegralpart of th s siatement.

2,367,650
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't 82,960

(26,170)

Business - Type

Activities

Entenrise

Operating rcvenues:

Charges tor services

Tolal operating revenues

Ope6ting expensas:

Operations and maintenance

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenditures

Operatinq income (Loss)

l{on-operating revenues (expeme3):

lnterest expense

Tolal non-operating revenues (expenses)

Change in Net Position

Total net position-beginning

Total net position-ending

$ 327,278

327,278

54,121

90,197

144.318

\26,170\

156,790

2,210,900

2,367,690

The notes to the finan cial statements are an integralpart of this statement. 2r

commo reall! ot Pueno Rico
Autonomous Mu.iclpalit, of Dorado

Statemeit of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Propietary Fund-Brisiness Type acrivlty - Enterpnse Fund

Year Ended Jrne 30, 2013



Cash Flows from OoeratlneActlvitles:

Receipts f rom Customers

Paymentto Supplaels

Net Cash Provided (Used) by OperatingActlvllles

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financine Activiti€s:

Net Cash Provided (Us€d) in CapitalEnd Related FinancingActivities

Nel Decreas€ ln Cash and Csh with FiscalAgent, Restficted

Cash and Cash with FiscalAgent at Begnning of Pedod, Restrlded

Cash and CaBh with Fiscalagent at End of Pedod, Restdcted

Reonciliation of Oo€latin€ lncome to ilet Cash Provided (tlsed) bv

ooelatinE Activities:

Operctinglncome (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile operating lncome to Net Cash Used by operating Activities:

327,274

\54.L2!)

273,157

l.1,4,52O)

(a4,52O)

254,631

134,410

397,447

182,960

Depreciation exp€nses

Net cash Provided (UB€d) by OpelatlngActivities

oncEsh investlng, capital and financing aclivities:

90,197

90,a97

273,157

The notes to the financral statemenis are an integral part ol this statement. 22

Commonwealth od Pleno Aico

Autonomous Municipality ol Dorado

Statement or Cash Flows

Prcpietary Fund-3usiness Type Activity - Enterprise fund

Year €nded June 30. 2013



1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Autonomous Municipality of Dorado (the lvunicipatity) was founded on the year 1842.
The Municipality's governmental system consists of an executive and legislature body. lt is
governed by a Mayor and a fourteen member Municipal Legislature who are elected for a four-
yearterm.

The Municipality provides public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and
welfare, community development, education, and other miscellaneous seryices.

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the Municipality conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("USGAAP") as
applicable to governmental units.

ln June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's and Discussion and Analysis for State
and Local Governments." This Statement, known as the Reporting Model, provides for the
most significant change in financial reporting for state and local governments in over 20 years
and affects the way the Municipality prepares and presents financjal information. The
Statement was adopted as ofluly 1, 2002. ln addition to this Statement, GASB Statement No.
37, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and
Local Governments: Omnibus" and GASB Statement No.38, "Certain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures" have been adopted and are reflected in these financial statements.

As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalization of
local government infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.). This requirement permits
an optional four-year delay for implementation to fiscal year 2OO7. fhe Municipality
implemented the capitalization of infrastructure since July 1, 2006.

ln lvlarch 2009, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.55, Ihe
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accountin€j Principles fot State and Loca/ Governments
(GASB No. 55), and GASB Statement No. 56, Codifcation of Accounting and Financial
Reportin€i Guidance Contained in the AICPA Statements on Auditingj Standards (GASB No.
56).

GASB No. 55 incorporated the hierarchy of USGMP for state and local governments into the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) authoritative literature. The
requirements in this Statement codify all USGMP for state and local governments so that they
derive from a single source.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

GASB No, 56 incorporated into the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB)

authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance presented in the

American lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants' Statements on Auditing Standards. This

Statement addressed three issues not included in the authoritative literature that establishes
accountin€! principles-related party transactions, going concern considerations, and

subsequent events.

ln fiscal year 2012, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fud
Balance Repofting and Governmentat Fund Type Definitions (GASB No. 54), which modified

the interpretations of certain terms within the definition of the special revenue funds and the

types of activities the Municipality may choose to report in those funds. GASB No. 54 also

;larified the capital projects fund type definition for better alignment with the needs of
preparers and users. Definitions of other governmental fund types were also modified for
clarity and consistencY.

The provisions of the GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, an

amendment of Statements No. 14 and 34, were considered in the evaluation of the potential

component units. This statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of components

units in the financial reporting entity and amends the criteria for reporting component units as

ifthey were part ofthe primary government under certain circumstances.

The GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance

Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements (GASB 62)'

incorporates into the GAsB's authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting
guidanceincludedinFASBpronouncements,whichdoesnotconflictwithorcontradictGASB
f,ronouncements, and eliminates the criteria to apply post-November 30' 1989 FASB

pronouncements that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements'

ln current year, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No 63, Financial

Reporting;f Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred lnflows of Resources, and Net Position

esiaftisning a new statement of net position format that reports separately all assets,

deferred o;tflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position

{whichisthenetresidualamountoftheotherelements).Thestatementrequiresdeferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources to be reported separately from assets

and liabilities. The financial reporting impact resulting from the implementation of GASB 63 in

the Municipality's financial statements was the renaming of "Net position" to "Net Position"'

including c'hanting the name of the financial statement from 'Statement of Net position' to

'Statement of Net Position".
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the Municipality:

A. Component tlnits

ln evaluating how to define the [4unicipality for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of GASB Statement No. 14, as amended. The
basic, but not the only criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is if
a primary government is financially accountable for the entity. Financial accountability exists if the
primary governmentalappoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body, and if either one ofthe
following conditions exist the primary government can impose ats will on the other entity or the
potential exists for the other entity to (1) provide specific financial benefits to or (2) impose specific
financial burdens on lhe primary government. A second craterion used in evaluating potential
component units ;s if the nature and significance of the rclationship between the entity and a primary
government are such that to exclude the entity from the financial repofting entiv would render the
financial stalements misleading or incomplete. Based on the above criteria, the Nrunicipality does not
have component units to include wilhin its repofting entity.

B, Government-wide and fund financial statements

Financial information of the Municipality is presented in this report as follow:

1. Management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and
provides an analytical overview of the Municipality's financial activities.

2. The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of Net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all the activities of the Municipality and its
component units, ifany. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-typed activities,
if any, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. lnterfund
activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the duplicating effect on
assets and liabilities within the governmental activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment is offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that
are charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

3. Fund financial statements focus on information about the Municipality's major
governmental funds. lvajor individual governmental funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. Pursuant to the provisions set forth by GASB

No. 54, the Municipality reported the following governmental funds in the accompanying
GFFS:
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Cenetal Fund - is the lvlunicipality main operating fund used to account for and report
all financial and reported resources and governmental activities, except for those
required to be accounted for in another fund. lt is presumed that the N4unicipality,s
governmental activities have been reported in the general fund except for transactions
for which one of the following compelling reasons has required the use of another fund:
(1) legal requirements, (2) USGMP requirements or (3) the demands of sound financial
administration requiring the use of a governmental fund other than the general fund. lts
revenues consist mainly of taxes, Iicenses and permits, intergovernmental, charges for
services and other.

Special Revenue Fund - State and Local Grcnts - is a major governmental fund used to
account for and reportthe proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than trusts for
individuals, private organizations, or other governments or for major capital projects) that
are legally restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt
service or capital projects.

Specia, Reyenue Fun&Head Statt - is a major governmental fund used to account for
and report the proceeds of revenues from Head Start, Early Head Start and Child and
Adult Care Food Program grants. The uses and limitations of this special revenue fund
are specified by federal and local statutes. The objective of the Head Start program is to
promote the school readiness of lowjncome pre-school children (ages 3 to 5).

Capital PrcJects Fundsstate and local grants - is a major governmental fund used to
account for and report financial resources that are restricted or committed to
expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities, including those outlays financed by the general obligation bond proceeds (other
than those financed by proprietary funds or in trust funds for individuals, private
organizations, or other governments), The use of the capital projects funds has been
limited to major capital acquisitions, construction or improvement activities that would
distort financial resources trend data if not reported separately from the other
Municipality's operating activities. The routine purchases of minor capitalizable assets
(such as furniture, office equipment, vehicles and other minor capital assets or
improvements) have been reported in the governmental fund from which financial
resources were used for the payment.

Capital Projects Funds-Fedehl gyant - is a major governmental fund used to account for
and report financial resources that are restricted to expenditure for capital outlays,
including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. The use of the capital
projects funds has been limited to major capital acquisitions, construction or
improvement activities that would distort financial resources trend data if not reported
separatelyfrom the other Municipality's operating activities.

Debt Seruice Fund -is a major governmental fund used to account for and report for the
accumulation of financial resources that are restricted for, and the payment of, principal
and interestfor: (1) bonds payable for which debt service payments are legally mandated
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

to be accounted for in a debt service fund and (2) certain special long-term obligations
for which the Municipality is been accumulating financial resources in advance to pay
principal and interest payments maturing in future years.

4, Proprietary Fund Types focus on report any activities for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services. The Municipalaty reports the following proprietary
fund:

Enterpfise Fund - The Enterprise Fund, which was established in June 1996, is used to
account for operations (1) that are financed and operated in a similar manner as private
business enterprises where the intent ofthe governing body is that the costs ( expenses,
including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basjs, are financed or recovered primary through uses, charges; or (2) where
the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The enterprise fund of the Municipality includes land and buildings known as
"Commercial Pavilion Rafael Hernandez Col6n" located in 349 M€ndez Vigo Street at
Dorado, Puerto Rico. The main source of income comes from rent received from spaces
rented with formal contracts.

5. The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user's
understanding of the basic financial statements.

6. Required supplementary information such as the budgetary comparison schedule-
generalfund and other types of data required by GASB.

7. Notes to the budgetary comparison schedule-general fund.

C. Financial reporting presentation

The accounts of the lvlunicipality are organized on the basis of funds, each if which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
equity, revenues, and expenditures.

The Municipality has established the following fund categories, fund types, account groups
and discreet presentation of enterprise fund:

Govemmental Fund Tvoes:

General Fund- General Fund is the general operating fund of the Municipality. lt is used to
account for all governmental activity, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

27

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALIIY OF DORADO

l{otes to Basic Financial Statements
For the FiscalYear Ended June 30, 2013



1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Special Revenue Fund - Local ard State Grarts - Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from local funds, state grants or other restricted revenue
sources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by
lVunicipality ordinances or state statutes.

Special Revenue Fund - Section 8 - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for
revenues derived from section 8 choice voucher program. The uses and limitations of each
special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Speclal Revenue Fund - Head Staft - ls the accounting entity in which revenues derived
from the federal agency are used to provide comprehensive health, educational, nutritional,
social, and other developmental services primarily to economically disadvantaged
preschool children (ages 3 to 5) and infants and toddler (birth through age 3) so that the
children will attain school readiness.

Special Revenue Fund - Othq Fedetal Gtants - Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each special
revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances orfederal and state statutes.

Capital Projects Furds - State and Local Gtants - Capital Projects Funds are used to
account for financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities.

Capital Prcjects Funds - Fedetal Grants'Capital Project Funds are used to account for
financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Debt Sewice Funds- Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of
resources for and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related
costs.

Proorietarv Fund Tvpes

Enteryrise Fund - The enterprise fund statements consist of Statement of Net position,
Statement of Activities, and Statement of Cash Flows. This fund accounts for exchange like
transactions, like private enterprise and its operations are intended to be self-supporting
through charges to users. These statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus, which concentrates on an entity or fund's Net posataon.

All transactions and events that affect the total economic resources (Net position) during
the period are reported. The statements are reported on the full accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses recognized in the
period in which the associated liability is incurred.
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D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation

Government-wide ,inancial statements - The accompanying GWFS are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Subject to
the additional rules and limitations detailed below, revenues (including interest on deposits
and investments) are generally recorded when earned and expenses are generally recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless ofthe timang of related cash flows.

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange-like
transactions are generally recorded when exchange takes place. ln exchange transactions,
each party to the transaction receives and gives up essentially equal values. An exchange-
like transaction is one when there is an identiflable exchange and the values exchanged,
though related, may not be quite equal. The accompanying basic financlal statements
include exchange.like transactions such as license fees, fines, penalties, forfeitures,
permits, charges for services, and most miscellaneous revenues, which are recorded as
revenues when collected because they are generally not measurable until actually received.

The lvlunicipality groups its non-exchange transactions into the following four (4) classes in
the accompanying basic financial statements: (a) derived tax revenues, (b) imposed non-
exchange revenues, (c) government mandated non-exchange transactions, and (d)
voluntary non-exchange transactions.

ln the case of derived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments that the
Municipality places on exchange transactions, receivables and revenues are recorded when
the underlying exchange has occurred.

ln the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as property taxes and
municipal license taxes), which result from assessments made by the Municipality on non-
governmental entities, including individuals, other than assessments on exchange
transaction, receivables are generally recorded in the period when an enforceable legal
claim has arisen. Property taxes and municipal license taxes are generally recorded as
revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) in the fjscal year when resources are
required to be used for the first fiscal year thatthe use ofthe resources is permitted.

For government-mandated non€xchange transactions (such as intergovernmental grants
and contributions), receivables and revenues are generally recorded when all eligibilaty
requirements, that are imposed by the provider, have been met. For the majority of grants,
the Municipality must expend resources on the specific purpose or project before the
provider reimburses any amounts. Therefore, revenue is generally recognized as qualifying
reimbursable expenditures are incurred.
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For voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain grants and
entitlements) receivables and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manner as
government-mandated non exchange transactions discussed above.

Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchange transactions are recorded when it is
probable that a loss has been occurred and the amount of loss is reasonably estimated.

lnterests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both
measurable and available at June 30, 2013. Receipts of any type of revenue sources
collected in advance for use in the followingfiscal year are recorded as unearned revenues.

According to GASB No. 34, all general capital assets and the unmatured tong-term liabititjes
are recorded only in the accompanying Statement of Net position. The measurement focus
and the basis of accounting used in the accompanying GWFS differ significanfly from the
measurement focus used in the preparation of the GFFS. Therefore, the accompanying
GFFS include reconciliations, as detailed in the accompanying table of contents, to better
identify the relationship between the GWFS and the cFFS.

Government Fund Financial Statements - The accompanying GFFS are reported using the
current financial resources measurements focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are generally recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For
this purpose, the lVunicipality generally considers most revenues (municipal licenses taxes,
construction excise taxes, sales and use taxes, interests on deposits, intergovernmental
grants and contributions and certain charges for services) to be available if collected within
sixty (60) days after June 30, 2013. At June 30, 2013, all revenues sources met this
availability criterion.

Property taxes are all considered susceptible to accrual if commonly collected within sixty
(60) days following the end of the fiscal period, unless unusual circumstances justify a
greater period.

Other revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include municipal license taxes,
sales and use taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovernmental grants and contributions,
interests on deposits and charges for services. These principal revenue sources meet both
measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying GFFS.
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ln a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the avaitabitity criteria
discussed above, all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from
exchange, exchange-like transactions are also generally recorded when the exchange takes
place while all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, and assets resulting from non-exchange
transactions are recorded when an enforceable legal claim arises or when all eligibility
requirements imposed bythe provider have been met, applicable.

lnterests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both
measurable and available atJune 30,2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB lnterpretation No. 6, Recogrition and Measurement of
Certain Liabilities and Expenditurcs in Governmental Fund Financial Statements (GASBI
No. 6), in the absence of an explicit requirement (i,e., the absence of an applicable
modification, discussed below) the l\4unicipality generally accrues a governmental fund
liability and expenditure (including salaries, professional services, supplies, utilities, etc.) in
the period in which the government incurs the liability, to the extent that these liabilities are
normally expected to be liquidated in a timely manner and in full with current available
financial resources. The accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds generally
reflects only assets that will be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities. Long-term
assets and those assets that will not be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities are
generally not accounted for in the accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds. At
the same time, long-term liabilities (generally, those unmatured that will not require the use
of current financial resources to pay them) are not accounted for in the accompanying
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds.

The measurement focus of the GFFS is on decreases of net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and are recorded
when the related governmental fund liability is incurred, Allocation of costs, such as
depreciation and amortization, are recorded in the accompanying Statement of Adivities,
but are not recorded in the accompanying GFFS.

E, Assets, liabilities and Net position

1. Cash, cash equivalents, and cash with fiscal agent- The Municipality's cash and cash
equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.
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Cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund represents special additional propertytax
collections retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the
payment of the N4unicipality's debt service, as established by law. Also, cash with fiscal
agent consists of unused proceeds of bonds and notes issued for the acquisition of
equipment and construction of major capital improvements.

Cash with fiscal agent is shown in the Enterprise Fund which is held by the covernment
Development Bank and its use is limited to the expenditures associated with
"Commercial Pavilion of Dorado Rafael Hernandez Col6n".

Receivables and payables- Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred
to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interFund loans) or
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds.'

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, if any, are offset
by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that
they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial
resources.

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which
are determined, based upon past collection experience and current economic
conditions. lntergovernmental receivable in the general fund represents the balance
due from the lvunicipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) resulting from the final
settlement; lntergovernmental receivables in the debt service fund represent the
amounts due from the CRIN4 resulting from the excess of current year property tax
collections over current year advances. lntergovernmental receivable in the capital
projects fund and in other governmental funds represent amounts owed to the
Municipality for reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded
programs or state funded programs.

lnventories. lnventories in the general fund is recorded as expenditure and,
consequently, the inventory is not recorded in the statement of Net position.

Capital assets. Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the
governmental activities column in the governmentalwide financial statements. The

Municipality defines capital asset as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$25 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

2.

3.

4.
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The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as pro.jects are
constructed.

Capital assets of the Municipality are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Description usefxl tire Caoitalization threshold

Euildings and site amprovements 40 years $1
lnfrastructure 40 years $1
Worlsofan 10 years $1
Vehicles 5 years $1
Furniture and fixtur€s 5 )ears $25
Machineryand equipment 3 to 5 years $25

5. Unearned levenues- ln the GFFS, unearned revenues arises when one of the following
situations occur:

Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for
revenue recognition in the current period (unavailable revenue). As previously
discussed, available is defined as due (or past due) at June 30, 2013 and collected
within 60 days thereafter to pay obligations due at June 30. ln subsequent periods,
when both criteria are met, the liability for unearned revenue is removed and
revenue is recognized.

The lvlunicipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (unearned
revenue). ln subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the
liability for unearned revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

6. Long-term obligations The liabilities reported in the government-wide financial
statements include to general and special obligation bonds and notes, and other long-
term liabilities, such as vacation, sick leave, litigation, long-term liabilities to other
governmental entities.

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances
cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources, while bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.

b.
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7. Compensated absences" Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days
per month up to a maximum of 60 days. unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully
vested to the employees from the first day of work. All vacation pay it is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide financial statements,

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum of
90 days. LJpon retirement, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated and
unpaid sick leave at the current rate, if the employee has at least 10 years of seryice
with the Municipality. All sick leave pay and salary related benefits are accrued when
incurred in the governmental-wide financial statements when the employee meets such
criteria.

Claims and judgments- The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments,
which is due on demand, such as from adiudicated or settled claims, is recorded in the
general fund when the liability is incurred.

Fund Balances- ln fiscal year 2012, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
(GASB No. 54), which enhanced the usefulness of fund balance information by
providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied.
This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy upon
the use ofthe resources reported in governmental funds.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB No. 54, the accompanying GFFS report fund balance
amounts that are considered restricted, and unassigned, based on the relative strength
of the constrains that control how specific amounts can be spent, as described as
follows:

a. Nonspendable - Represent resources that cannot be spent readily with cash or are
legally or contractually required not to be spent, including but not limited to
inventories, prepaid items, and long term balances of interfund loans and accounts
receivable.

b. Restrrcted - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by constitutional provisions, external resource providers (externally

imposed by creditors or grantors), or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation
that creates a new revenue source and restricts its use). Effectively, restrictions may
be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

8.

9.
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c. Ass,gred - Represent resources intended to be used by the Municipality for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed
(generally executive orders approved by the Mayor). lntent can be expressed by the
Municipal Legislature, the Mayor or by an olficial or body to which the Municipal
legislature delegates authority in conformity with the Autonomous Municipalities Act
of Puerto Rico, as amended. ln governmental funds other than the general fund,
assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or
committed.

d. Urassrgned - Represent the residual classification for the Municipality's general
fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.
ln other funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance
resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been
restricted, committed, or assigned.

Negative fund balance amounts are assigned amounts reduced to the amount that
will raise the fund balance to zero. Consequently, negative residual amounts in
restricted, committed and assigned fund balance classifications have been
reclassified to unassigned fund balances.

The Municipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a specified purpose
(restricted or committed fund balance in the general fund) only if: (1) such resources
meet the other criteria for those classifications, as described above and (2) the
circumstances or conditions that signal the need for stabilization are identified in

sufficient detail and are not expected to occur routinely. However, the Municipality has
not entered into any stabilization]ike arrangements, nor has set aside material financial
resources for emergencies and has not established formal minimum fund balances
amounts as of for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

ln situations when expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available
in multiple fund balance classifications, the Municipality generally spends committed
resources first, and then unrestricted resources. Within unrestricted resources, the
Municipality generally spends committed resources first, followed by assigned
resources, and then unassigned resources.

10.Net Position

Net Position has been reDorted pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement No. 63,
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred lnflows of Resources,

and Net Position. Net Position represents the difference between all assets plus

deferred outflows of resources and all liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources. The
Net Position consists of net resources restricted by external parties (such as debt
covenants, creditors, grantors, contributions, laws or regulations of other governments,

etc.), or net position for which constraints are imposed by the constitutional provisions

or enabling legislation,
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Enabling legislation consists of legislation that authorizes the lvlunicipality to assess, levy,
charge or otherwjse mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers). Enabling
legislation establishes restrictions if it includes a legally enforceable requirement that those
resources be used onlyfor the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.

A legally enforceable enabling legislation restriction is one that a party external to the
N4unicipality (such as citizens, public interest groups, or the judicaary) can compel the
Municipality to honor. The lMunicipality periodically reevalua'tes the legal enforceability of an
enabling legslation to determine if any of the resources raised by the enabling ledslation are
used for a purpose not specified by the enabling legslation or if the Municipality has other
cause for consideration.

The classiflcation of restricted net position identifies resources that have been received or
earned by the N4unicipality with an explicit understanding between the N4unicipality and the
resource providers that the resources would be used for specific purposes. Grants,
contributions and donations are often given under those kinds of conditions. Bond indentures
also often limit the use of bond proceeds to specific purposes.

lnternally imposed designation of resources, including earmarking, are not reported as
rest cted net position. These designations consist of management's plans for the use of
resources, which are subject to change atthe discretion ofthe Municipal Legislature.

ln the government-wide statements, net position is segregated into three categories:

a. Net lhvestment ln caprtal assets: Represent the component ofthe net position that consist
of capilal asset balances net of accumulated depreciation and amortization reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, notes and other borrowings that are aftributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. This category should not include
cash that is restricted to capital assets acquisition or construction (unspent bond
proceeds) and any unamortized debt issue costs.

b. Restricted net positioD: Represents the component of the net position that is subject to
restrictions beyond the Municipal's control. These include restrictions that are externally
imposed (by creditoE, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of olher
governments) or restrictions imposed by the law through constitutional provisions or

enabling legslation iincluding enabling legislation passed by the government itsel0.

c. Unrestricted net posifrbn: Represents lhe component of the net position that do not meet

the definition of net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted.
unrestricted assets are often designated to andicate that management does not consider

them to be available for general ope€tions. These types of constrainls are internal and

management can remove or modifythem. Designations are not reponed on the face ofthe
statement of Net Position.
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ll.Accounting for Pension Costs- On .july 1, 2007, the Municipality adopted the provisions
of GASBS No. 50, Pe,sion D/sc/osure, which amended GASBS No.27, Accountinq for
Pensions by State and Local Government Employers, by requiing disclosure of how the
contractually required contribution rate is determined by governments participating in
multi-employer cost-sharing pension plans.

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a

multi-employer cost-sharing plan. Accordingly, pension costs recognized in the
accompanying basic financial statements are equal to the statutorily required
contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required contributions.

For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASBS No. 27, the state Government
of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees' Retirement System of
the Government of Puerto Rico and its lnstrumentalities (ERS) and System 2000, a
multi-employer cost-sharing define benefit pension plan and a hybrid defined
contribution plan, respectively, in which the employees of the Municipality participate.
The lvunicipality is considered a participant, and not a sponsor, of these retirement
systems since the majority of the participants in the aforementioned pension trust
funds are employees of the Government of Puerto Rico and the basic financial
statements of such retirement systems are part of the financial reporting entity of the
Government of Puerto Rico.

l2,lnterfund and intra€ntity transactions The Municipality has the following types of
transactions among funds:

a. Operating Transfers- Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as
"Operating transfer-in' by the recipient fund and as "Operating transfers-out' by the
disbursing fund.

b. lntra-Entity Transactions- Transfers between the funds of the primary government
are reported as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as

amounts due to and duefrom otherfunds.

37

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALIfY OF DORADO

l{otes to Basic Financial Statements
Forthe FiscalYear Ended June 30, 2013



1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF STGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)

13.Risk financing- The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft,
tort claims and other losses. lnsurance policies are negotiated by the Puerto Rico
Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the Municipalities of Puerto
Rico. Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from the gross
property tax collections by the CRIM for the year ended June 30, 2013 amounted to
$7,851. The current insurance policies have not been cancelled or terminated.

The lVunicipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by the
automobile accidents. The insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents
Compensation Administration (AACA), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico. This insurance is compulsory for all licensed vehicles used on public roads and
highways in Puerto Rico. The annual premium is $35 per licensed motor vehicle, which
is paid directly to MCA.

The Municipality obtains workers' compensation insurance through the State lnsurance

Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This
insurance covers workers against injuries, disability or death because of work or

employment-related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a consequence oftheir
employment. Cost of insurance allocated to the N4unicipality and deducted from the
gross property tax collections by the [runicipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) for the
year ended June 30, 2013 amounted to $424,096,

The N4unicipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational disability' and

drivers' insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance programs

administered by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's Department of Labor and Human

Resources (DOL). These insurance programs cover workers against unemployment and
provide supplementary insurance coverage for temporary disability, or death because

work or employment-related accidents or non-occupational disability and drivers'

insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis.

lJnder Act No. 63 of June 21, 2010, the Legislative Assembly of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico, authorized the municipalities to procure and manage at their own

discretion all insurance policies, including those related to health plans been provided

to the municipal employees. The N4unicipality also obtains medical insurance coverage

from one health insurance company for its employees. Different health coverage and

premium options are negotiated each year by the Municipality. Premiums are paid on a

monthly basis directlyto the insurance company'
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14.Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with USGMP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the djsclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reported period. Actual amounts could differfrom those estimates.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The N4unicipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in Puerto Rico
and Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). Proceeds from bonds and funds
related to certain grant awards are required by law to be held with GDB.

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No. 4O), Deposit
and lnvestment Risk Drsc/osure. an Amendment to GASB Statement No- 3. This statement
requires that state and local governments disclose essential risk information about deposits
and investments. The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2)

interest rate risk, (3) custodial credit risk, (4) foreign exchange exposure.

Credit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. ln comptiance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the
Municipality has adopted, as it's custodial and credit risk policy, the Staternent of r,vestment
Gurdel,nes lor the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Accordingly the
l\4unicipality invests only in obligations ofthe Commonwealth, obligations ofthe United States
of America, certificates of deposits, commerciat paper, bankers' acceptances, or in pools of
obligations of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, which are managed by GDB. According to the
aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality does not invest in marketable
securities or any types of investments for which credit risk exposure may be significant.
Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that the risk related to any possible

loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the lvlunicipality's deposits is considered low

at June 30. 2013.

lnterest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will

adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by: (1) not including debt investments in its investment portfolio atJune

30,2Ol3, (2) limiting the weighted average maturity of its investments to three months or

less, and (3) keeping most of its bank deposits in interests bearing accounts generating

interests at prevailing market rates. At June 30, 2013, the Municipality's investments in

certificates of deposits are recorded at cost, which approximates their fair value. Therefore,

the Municipality's management has concluded that at June 30, 2013, the interest rate risk

associated with the lVunicipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low'
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2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Custodial credit risk - ln the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the lvunicipality's deposits may not be recovered. Pursuant to the Statement of
lnvestment Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico the balances
deposited in commercial banks by the lvlunicipality are insured by the Federal Deposit
lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) generally up to a maximum of $250,000 per depositor.

ln addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully securities
pledged as collateral are held, in the Municipality's name, by the agents of the
Commonwealth's Secretary of Treasury. Deposits with GDB are uninsured and
uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defaults by GDB on deposit transactions have

been incurred by the N4unicipality through June 30, 2OL3, Therefore, the Municipality's
management has concluded that at June 30, 2013 the custodial credit risk associated with
the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Foreign exchange risk - The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely alfect the
value of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines,

the Municipality is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other types of
investments in which foreign exchange risk exposure may be significant. Accordingly,

management has concluded that the foreign exchange risk related to the Municipality's
deposits is considered low at June 30, 2013.

lJnder Commonwealth of Puerto Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banks

must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depository
insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury of
Pueto Rico. ln addition, the Municipality maintains deposits with the Government

Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB).

Deposits - The Municipality's bank balances in commercial banks of $3,860,433, $688,136,
$182,796, $1,804,519 and $4,108,240, in the generalfund, special revenue fund-state and

local grants, head start, capital projects fund - local and state grants, and capital projects

fund - federal grants, respectively, were fully collateralized at June 30, 2013' ln the other
governmental funds there were deposits with commercial banks of $618,059 that were fully

collateralized.

The deposits at GDB of $1,543,365 in the Special Revenue fund-local and state grant,

$8,820,638 that is restricted principally for capitat projects in the capital proiect fund-local

and state grant and the $9,852,982 in the debt service fund are unsecured and

uncollateratized, as no collateral is required to be carried by the Governmental Development

{GDB).
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3. RECEIVABLES

A. lnterglovemmental Recelvables - lntergovernmental receivable in the special revenue
fund-state and local grants represents governmental contributions receivable at June 30,
2013. Following is a detail ofthe intergovernmental receivable:

Total $ L2885

lntergovernmental receivable in debt service fund represents property tax receivable at
June 30, 2013. Following is a detail ofthe intergovernmental receivable:

Govemmental Entitv

Solid Waste Authority

Governmental EntitY

Mufiicipal Revenue Collection Center ('CRlM")

Amount

$ 17.885

Amount

s 96.694

Total $96-694

B. Federcl lyants rcceivables- Federal Grant receivable in Head Start fund represents
expenditures incurred not yet reimbursed by federal government or the pass-through
grantor. Following is a detail ofthe intergovernmental receivable:

Federal Grant receivable in other governmental funds represents expenditures incurred
not yet reimbursed byfederal government or the pass-through grantor. Following is a detail
of the intergovernmental receivable:

ProEram Descdotlon

Head Stan Program

Total

ProEram Descriotion

Hazard l\rit,gation Program
Community SeNices Block Grant
Child and Adult Care Food Program
Community Development Block Grants/ State's Program

Other

Total

Amount

$ 1.855

$ L-855

Amount

$ 2a,o00
23,665
36,466
32,a49

3.033

$ 1,23353

c. Othet Receivable- Other receivable of $45,561 in the general fund represents accounts
receivable at.lune 30, 2013, related to construction excise taxes $9,960, fines $2,235
and rent of $33.366.
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4. INTERFUNDTRANSACIIONS

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2013, and interfund transfers duringthe fiscal
year ended atJune 30, 2013, are summarized as follows:

a. Due from/to other Iund and Advance to/from:

Receivable Fund

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Total

Amount

$ 962,594

aa4,65r

4,647,OL4

74,237

264-298

$1130J98

PaYable Fund

Special Revenue Fund state
and localgrants

Head Start Program Fund

Capital Prqects Fund'State

Other Governmenta I Funds-
FederalPrograms

capital Projects Fund-
FederalGrants

Purpose

Payroll and related accruals
paid and not reimbursed

Reimbursable expenditures

Reimbulsable expenditures

Reimbursable expenditures

Reimbursable expenditures

Transfer in

Special Revenue Fund- Head Stan Proglam

Other Governmental Funds

Debt S€rvice Fund

Special Revenue Fund€tate and localgrant

Capital Projects Fund- State & LocalGrants

other Governmental Funds

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

Special Revenue Fund-state and local
grants

b. Transfel in/out to other lund

Transfer out

General Fund

General Fund

Genelal Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Capital Projects Fund-Federal
Grants

Gpital Projects Fund€tate and
localgrants

Special Revenue Fund- state and
local grants

Sp€cialRevenue Fund_ Head Stan

Amount

$ 2,000

1,605

55,6L2

84,170

L8,419

33,O00

200,000

343,609

12,935

4,000
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4. INTERFUNDTRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Transfer out

Enterprise Funds

Special Revenue Fund state and
localgrants

Special Revenue Fund- Head Start
lntrafund

capital Projects Fund- State & Local
Grants lntrafund

Capital Projects Fund- Federal
crant lntrafund

Other Governmental Funds
lntrafund

Other Governmental Funds
lntrafund

Special Revenue Fund state and
localgrants

T6nster in

Debt Service

Special Revenue Fund- Head Start

Special Revenue Fund- Head Stan

capital Projects Fund- state & Local Grants

capital Projects Fund' Federal Grant

Other Governmental Funds

Other Governmental Funds

Other Governmenta I Funds

Amounl

44,520

2,464

a60,407

3,924,695

334,277

2,O44

69,O41

14,350

1649

533.570

$ 651637i

SpecialRevenue Fund'Head Stan Other Governmenta I Funds

Capital Projects Fund- Federal
Grants

Total

DebtService

IH'S SPACE HAS BEEI' INTENTIONALLY LEFI BLANK

43

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERIO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO
l,lotes to Basic Financial Stateme s

For the FiscalYear Ended.,une 30, 2013



5. CAPITAL ASSEIS

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time of
acquisition by the Municipality and a cost of $25 or more, are primarily funded through the
issuance of long term bonds and loans. A summary of capital assets and changes occurring
in 2013, including those changes pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34,
follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation:

Govemmental Activities:
Ealance
lJul-13 3Grun-13

101,948
484,579
113,153

32L,7!7
2,898

29,214
37,440

CEpital asset, not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress

Total capltal assets not being

Capital asseB, being depreciated:

Buildings
Bulldings improvements

lnfrastructurc improvements
Equipment
Furnishang

Iotal capital assets being

L€ss accumulated depreciation for

Buildings
B'rildings improvements

lnfrastructure improvements
Equipment

f otal accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being

Governmental activities capital

$ 65,864,730
23,332,494

$ a7225
LO,29t,209

$
e2a,o51)

$ 65,951,9s5
33,195,646

49,797,224 14374,434 g2a,o57) 99,747,601

14,303,073
15,639,268
12,923,251
5,515,605
4,447,101

479,452
306,925
518,701

7,803,602

(4,081)
(1,635)

lLz,2A4l
(83,234)

(7O7,234)

4,OO1
7,625

12,273

43,163

1,4,405.O21,
16,t23,a47
13,036,404
5,515,605
4,764,743

480,7L5
306,925
535,695

7,754,208

62,927,163

(7,154,368)
(2,0o5,140)
(3,943,8O9)
(Lasl3a9)
(3,866,475)

(452,546)
(498,636)
1144,842)

(6,962,922)

t26.964,127)

35,963,036

61,936,984 7,O91,4L3

(6,796,366)
(1,606,447)
13.732,637)
(1,523,682)
(3,508,640)

@24,551)
(485,608)
(118,950)

$,724,9L1)

(358,002)
(398,693)
125L,L72)
1367,7O7)
(361,842)

125,6201
(25,301)
Q9,492)

(317,168)

124,929,794) (2,135,397) 101O6a

37,007,186 (1,043,984) (166)

$ \42a,223) $ 135,110,637$ 726,2A4,410 $ 9,334,450
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5. CAPTTAL ASSEIS (CONTTNUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functons/programs ofthe Municipality as follows:

Governmental activities:

Geoeralgovemment
Public safety

Health and welfare
Education
Economic development
Cr.rlture and recreation
Community development

Total depreciation expense-govemmental ac vities

Balance
L-Jul-72 Additions

$ 537,999
455,437
676,350

13,583
3,972

96,613
379,679
27a.764

82J35t97

Reilrements
aalance

3GJun-13Business - tvoe activities

Capital asset, not being depreciated:

Land and construction in progress

Tota I capita I assets not bein€l
depreciated

Ca pital as6ets, beinEl depreciated:

Building
Building improvements

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreclation lor:

BuildinC

Total accumulated depreciatton

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Euslness - typ€ Activities capital
assets, net

(1,415,558) (90,197)

(1,41s,558) (90,197)

$ 38a,790

388,790

3,537,458
45,400

3,582,a58

$ 388,790

388,790

3,537,458
45,400

3,582,858

(1,5O5,755)

(1,505,755)

2,O77,7032,167,300 (90,197)

$2,556,O90

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs ofthe

Buslness -tvoe Activities
Generalgovernment

Total depreciatlon expense-govemmental activities

$2,465,893

Municipality as follows:

$ 90.197

$lol9z
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6. ACCOUNIS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable, and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2013 are summarized as follows:

Spe.llR.v.nue

$ 354,410 i

RqducFund c.0lB rrq€ds c.p"t tpEJ€.ts

Ellni llslrer.nE GErtr

3 3 31.940 a

l l-j55n46 L- t- i __lllt4o t ,_:[650 $ t t12]6 $ 1203-i!12

7. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES:

The amounts due to other governmental entities in the General Fund include the following;

Govehmental EntiW

Puerto RicoAqueduct and Sewer Authority
Retirement System Administraiion
Government of Puerto Rico
Genera I Services Ad ministration

Total

8. UNEARNED REVENUES

Amount

$ 217,526
2,304

18,997
125-7a7

$ i@Lqt4

A. Municipal License Tax- The Municipality imposes a municipal licensetaxonall businesses
that operate within the lvunicipality, which are not totally or partially exempt from the tax
pursuant to the lndustrial lncentives Acts of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico. This is a
self-assessed tax based on the business volume in gross sales as shown in the tax return
that is due on April 24 of each year.

Entities with sales volume of $1,000,000 or more must include audited financial
statements together with the tax return. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the
tax rates were as follows:

1. Financial business. 1.50% of gross revenues

2. Other organizations- 0.50% of gross revenues

This tax is due in two equal installments on July l and January 1 of each fiscal year. A
discount of 5yo is allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15.

Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year are
recorded as unearned revenUes,

The unearned revenues of $3,595,523 in the general fund relates to municipal license tax
collected in fiscal year 2012-12 that wi be earned in fiscat year 2013-14.
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8. UNEARNED REVENUES (CONTINUED)

B. Fede.al Governmenl The unearned revenues presented in other governmental funds
represent the portion offederal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not
been incurred. Unearned revenues from the federal government are as follows:

ProEram Description

Section 1O&LGA
Housing Opportunities for Person with Atm
Special Program forAging Titte ttt
Federa I Tra nsit Adm inistration
Federal Tra nsit Admin istration

Total

Amount

$ 311a2
20,ooo
51,616
49,475
56193

$208JO6

9. PROPERTYTAXES

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by
May 15 of each year with the CRIM, a governmental entity created by the government of
Puerto Rico as part of the Municipal Governmental Autonomous Law of August 1991. Real
property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of real estate and on each building.

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for
personal property and on estimated values as of !957 for rcd property tax. The tax on
personal property must be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real
property may be paid in two instaltments by Juty 1 and January 1. The CRIM is responsibte for
the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf of all the
municipalities of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs the
Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collect for the ensuing
fiscal year. Throughout the year, the CRIIV advances funds to the Municipality based on the
initial estimated collections, as modified by the quarterly revisions of estimates required law.
The CRIIV is required by law to prepare a liquidation statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby
a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the lvluniclpality and amounts
actually collected from taxpayers, This preliminary liquidation has to be completed on a
preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year-end, and a final liquidation
made not later than six months after year-end, subject to the verification by its lndependent
Auditors. lf the CRIM remits to the Municipality property tax advances, which are less than the
tax actually collected, a receivable from the CRltVl is recorded at June 30. However, if
advances exceed the amount actually collected by the CRIM, a payable to the CRIM is
recorded at June 30. At the date of this report, the Final Liquidation has not been issued by
the CRIM.
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9. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED)

On January 26, 2000, Public Law No.42 was enacted which authorized the CR|M to obtain a
loan up to $200,000,000, and for a term not to exceeding 10 years, to allow for the financlng
of the debt that the Municipatities of puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from fina]
settlements of property tax advances versus actuar colections through fiscar year;nded June
30, 2000. The amounts that the Municipalities will collect from ;dditional property taxes
resulting from increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth of puerto Rico to the
lvunicipalities are assigned through this raw to repay such roan. The increase in this subsidy
was the result of the Public Law No. 238, enacted on August 15, 1999. On October 11, 2OOi,
Public Law No. 146 was enacted to amend public Law No, 42, to extend the loan amortization
period up to 30 years.

Also, on October 11, 2002, Public Law No. 172 was enacted, to provide as an option for the
Municipalities to inctude the debt that the Municipalities of puerto Rico have with the cRtM
arising from final setuemenG of property tax advances versus actual collections for the fiscal
year ended June 30,2001 with the toan authorized through pubtic Law No.42 enacted on
lanuary 26, 20O0.

On June 26, 1997, Public La,iu No. 21 was enacted which authorized the CRIIV to sell property
tax receivables related to taxpayers who owned property taxes frcm lg74 to 1996. The
property tax receivables were purchased by public Financing Corporation, a subsidiary of the
Government Development Bank (GDB), with proceeds of a bonds issuance. This Law imposes
to the CRIM the obligation to replace any uncollectible property tax receivable with any valid
property tax receivables or equivalent in money.

A high percentage of receivables were determined to be uncollectible receivables, and
therefore, on October 11, 2001, public Law No. 146 ,,as enacted which authorized the CRIM
to obtain a loan to pay in advance the bonds issued by the public Financing Corporation (a
GDB subsidiary), and any costs related to the transaction. Also, a term not to exceeding 30
years was authorized to the financing of the debt that the Municipalities of puerto Rico have
with the CRIM arising from the sale of property tax receivables to the public Financing
Corporation (a cDB Subsidiary).

The government wide statement of Net position includes an outstanding debt balance of
$221,,349 and $249,556 related to Law No. 42 and Law 146 respectivety.

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property
taxes on the first $15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the puerto
Rico Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municjpalities, except for
property assessed at less than $3,500 for which no payment is made. As part of the
Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to be paid by the puerto Rico
Treasury department to the Municipalities was frozen as of January I, 1992.

ln addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property taxes of up
to $50,000 ofthe assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than $15O,OOO.
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Beginning Ending

9. PROPERTYTAXES (CONTINUED)

The annual tax rate. as amended in December 2012, is LO.7g% for rcal property and 9.O3%ofor personal property of which 1.03% of both tax rates are for the r"oumption of public debt
issued by the Commonweatth of puerto Rico and the remaining .2O % is paid by the
Commonwealth of puerto Rico, as a subsidy, The remaining perintage is distdbuted as
follows: (a) 6% and 4o/o, respectively, represents ttre Municifaiity,s basi-.c property tax rate
which is appropriated for basics and accounted for in the gene;al fund. A portion of such
amount is deposited in an equalization fund together with a p;rcentage of the net revenues of
the Puerto Rico electronic lottery and a subsidy from the Commonwe;lth of puerto Rico- From
such fund, a distribution is made to all municipatities; (b) 3.75% and 4.OO%, respectively,
represents the ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and accounted for in the debt servi;e
fund.

lO.MUNICIPAL SALES AND USE TAX

On )uly 29,2OO7, an amendment to Act. No. 117 of July 4, 2006, known as the ,,Tax Fairness
Act of 2006', was enacted with the purpose of establishing a mandatory sales and use tax of
1.5%o at the N4unicipar rever. The Municiparities of puerto Rico are respo;sibre to coflect 1% of
the corresponding tax with the same exemptjons and limitations thatthe portion collected by
the Treasury Department. The Act provides for an optjonal surtax on the unprocessed food.
This surtax must be approved by the Municipal Legislature. The Treasury Department is
responsible to create, the Municipat Devetopment Fund (.02), the Municipal Redemption Fund
(.02), and the Municipal tmprovement Fund (.01) with the remaining 0.05. The Municipality
collected $1,884,009 during the year ended June 30,2013. At;, $g57.662 from the
Municipal Redemption Fund is included in the Debt Service Fund.

11.LONG-TERM LTABILITIES

Long-term liability activity,governmental funds, for the year ended June 30,2013, was as
follows:

Adjustment

$ 5,570,000
540,000

7,O13
50,o00

Property -rax Debt-Law 146
PropenyTax Debt - Law 42
Compensated Ab6ences
CIaims and ludgments

$ 5156a,000
7,624,000

249,556
227,OA5

2,774,$7
342,975

1,970,383

$ (2,490,000)
(836,000)

(5,736)

$ 54,648,000
7,324,000

249,556
22L,349

2,785,550
392,975

1,970,383

$2,675,000
416,000

11,883
6,096

305,OO0
392,97s

$64./60,536 S6,167,013 $rl.lJ1,736r $675q5sr?

Long term liability activity-business type activity, for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as
follows:
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11.LONG-TERM LtABTLTfl ES (CONTINUED)

Beginning
D€sc ption

Total

Ending

$ 484,000 $484,000 $150,000

$ 484,000 $484,000 $150,000

1. Legaldebt margin-The Municipality is subjectto a legal debt margin requirement, which is
equal to 10% of the total assessment of property located within the Municipality plus

balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable to be repaid
with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt service. ln addition, before any new
bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be sufficient to cover the
projected debt service requirement, Long-term debt, except for the bonds and notes
payable (excluding notes payable to the Land Authority), is paid with unrestricted funds.

2. Bonds Payabte The Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds to provide

funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. Bonds payable

outstanding atJune 30, 2013 are as follows:

Descriotion

1995Public improvement bond for infrastructurc improvements with an original
amount of $2,750,000 due in installments of $220,ooo to $280,oo0 through July 1,

2015

1997 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $29o,0o0 due in installments of $2o,oo0 to $25,000through Julv 1,2016

1997 Special obligation bond for infrastructule improvements with an original amount
of$11O,O00 due in insta lments of$5,OOOto $10,0OOthrough July 1,2016

1999 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements wiih an oiginal amount
of$3,675,000 due in installments of $335,0001o $39o,0o0through Julv 1,2014

2OOO General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $65,000 due in installments of $5,00Othrough Julv 1,2014

2OOO General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount

of $1.5oo.OOO due in instaltments of$7o,O0Oto l45,ooothrough Julv 1,2021

2OOl General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount

of$31O,OOO due in installments of$1o,00oto $30,0oothrough July 1,2026

2OO2 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount

of $2,850,O0O due in installments of $8O,O0Oto $25O,0O0through Julv 1,2O27

2OO4 General obligation bond for ope€tional expenses with an original amount of

$55o,ooo due in installments of $15,0o0to S4o,0oothrough Julv 1,2029

Balance at
June 30. 2013

$ s40,oo0

70,ooo

25,OOO

390,000

5,000

aao,000

230,OO0

2,205,OOO

,140,000
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11.LONG-TERM LTABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

Descriotion

2004 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $3,15O,O00 d ue in insta llments of $ 135,OOO to g 24O,OOO lhtouCh Juty 7, 2024

2OO4 General obligation bond for infrastrLrcture improvements with an originat amount
of$115,O0O due in instaIments of $5,000to $lo,ooothrough July 1,2024

2004 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $1,860,000 due in instattments of$aO,OOo to $145,O0O through Juty 1,2024

2005 General obligation bond for operational expenses-housing rehabititation with an
original amount of$50,000 due in installments of$5,000through Juty 1,2015

2005 Generalobligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originalamount
of $945,0OO due in installments of$60,000to $A5,O00through Juty 1,2020

2OO5 General obligation bond for infrastrLrcture improvements with an originat amount
of$5,825,000 due in instalments of $360,000to $535,000 rhrough luty 1,2020

2006 Special obligation bond for propeny acquisition with an originat amount of
$532,OO0 due in installments of $13,0OOto $42,0OOthrough luty 1,2030

2007 Special obligation bond for lnfrastructure improvement with an originat amount
of$1,645,000 due in instalhents of $85,0OOto $175,000 through Juty 1,2022

2OO8 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originalamount
of $3,650,000due in installments of$65,000to $305,0OOthrough Juty 1,2033

2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an o ginal amount
of $220,000 due in installments of $20,000to $3O,OO0through luty 1,2O1A

2OO8 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$37O,O0O due in installments of 65,000to $35,OOOthrough July 1,2033

2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $3,265,000 due in installments of $60,000to $270,O0Othrough Juty 1,2033

2OOa Special obligation bond for infrastructure jmprovements with an originat amount
of$3,72O,O0O due in installments of$75,OOOto $310,000 through Juty 1,2032

2009 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $3,395,OO0 due in installments ot $9O,OOO to $31O,OOO through Juty 1, 2029

2009 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $930,OOOdue in installments of $25,OOOto $S5,OOOthrough July 1,2028

2010 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of$1,82O.0OOdue in installments of$4O,OOO to $155,OOOthrough Juty 1,2032

Balance at
lune 30. 2013

2,110,OOO

70,000

1,240,000

10,ooo

530,000

3,25o,OOO

44a,OOO

1,185,000

3,345,O00

130,O00

345,000

2,945,000

3,450,OOO

3,045,000

845,0O0

1,705,000
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11. LONG-TERM L|ABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

Descriotion

2010 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $1,O95,0OOdue in installments of $20,0OOto $9O,0OOthrough July 1,2035

2O1O Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an origrnal amount
of $537,0OO due in installments of $3O,O0Oto $62,O00through July 1, 2022

2012 Generalobligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originalamount
of $1,900,000 due in installments of$3O,OOOto $160,000 through July 1,2036

2012 Generalobligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originalamount
of $3,305,000 due in installments of$60,000to $290,0OOthrough July 1,2033

2012 Generalobligation bond for infrastructure im provements with an originalamount
of $805,OO0 due in installments of$3O,OO0to $85,OO0through July 1,2025

2013 Generalobligation bond for infrastructure im provements with an originalamount
of$2,315,000 due in installments of $55,O0Oto $215,0OOthrough July 1.2031

2013 General obligation bond for operational expenditures with an original amount of
$1O,24O,OO0 due in installmentsof $15O,OO0to $855,OO0 through luly 1,2036

2012 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$2,185,0OO due in installments of $45,0OOto $2O0,O00 through JLr,y 1,2032

2013 Geneml obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$1,145,0OOdue in installments of $4O,0OOto $120,000 through July 1,2027

2013 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $1,255,000due in installments of $3O,OOOto $115,OOOthrough July 1, 2032

2013 Generalobligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originalamount
of $9a5,00O due in installments of $15,OOO to $S5,OOOthrough Ju91,2037

Total general obligation bonds in Governmental Activities

ldd: speci6l oblitauon Bond in Busrh€€s Typ. a.irvrd6

2012 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originalamount
of $754.0OO due in installments of$13O,00Oto $174,000through July 1,2016

Balance at
lune 30.2013

1,040,000

452,O00

1a4O,0OO

3,175,000

750,000

2,260,OOO

10,090,ooo

2,145,000

1,145,000

1,255,000

9A5,OOO

$ 54,684,000

484,000

Total general obligation bonds in Govern menta I Activities and Business Type A"tlriti". $ S5,\32,OOO

These bonds, except the 1997 Series bonds for $11O,OOO and $290,000, and the 2006
Series bonds amounting to $532,000, are payable from the special ad valorem property tax
of 2.00% which is restricted for debt service and retained by the Government Development
Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes The 2OO8 series bond amounting to $$3,720,000,
the 2oo9 bond for $$930,000, the 2010 Series bond for $537,000, and the 2012 Series
bond amounting $8O5,OOO are payable with the revenues generated from the collection of
the .2% of the municipal sales and use taxes Redemption Fund.

The 2012 Series bonds amounting to $754,000 is payable by the self-generated revenues
from the "Pabell6n Rafael Hern6ndez" charges for services and is accounted for in the
business type activity.
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11. LONG-TERM LTABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows:

3. Notes Payable The proceeds of the issuance of notes payables were used principally to
pay debt incurred in prior years and to cover the expenditures of a special event. The notes
are payable as follows:

Year Ending
.iune 30.

2044
2075
2076
2047
20ra
2049-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
203+2034
Total Bonds Payable

Tvoe of notes

2OO7 Series
2008 Series
Section 108 Series 2OO8 A
20OgSeries
2OO9 Series
2OO9 Series
2010 Series
2O10 Series
2012 Series
2013 Series

Princioat

$ 2,A25,O00
2,631,000
2,41a,OOO
2,24a,OOO
2,599,000

13,093,O00
12,610,000
72,425,OOO
4,050,000

S-55EZpoo

hlclcst
$ 3,O77,325

3,264,535
3,L69,272
3,069,O03
2,964,806

12,395,954
a,a7a,aaa
3,727,465

61a,625
-5lo,465.8-oo

Maturity
Salc

7-7 2044
7 7.2075
7.!-2024
7.1-20t5
7-t-20L4
7-7-2033
7-7-20a7
7-a-20a7
7 42014
7/A2OE

Original
Amount

480,O00
230,O00

5,500,000
925,000
125,O00

1,141,O00
345,O00

65,000
440.000
540,OO0

Range ot
lnterest lates

a.718Yo to 5%
7.714%to 6%

5-alyo
1,.718%to 6%
L77A% ro sqa

1.718%to 6.50%
4.73%

5%to7%
6% to 7.5O%
6Yo lo 7.5%

Balance at
June 30.2013

45,000
80,oo0

4,582,000
315,000

30,000
1,066,000

260,OO0
40,o00

375,O00
540,000

Total notes payable $ 7,373,0O0

This notes, except the 2OOg and 2012 Series are payable from the specjal ad valorem
property tax of 2.00% which is restricted for debt service and retained by the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes, The Series 2009, amounting
1,74L,000, and lhe 2012 Series amounting to $480,000 are payable with the revenues
generated from the collection of the .2% of the municipal sales and use taxes Redemption
Fund.
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11. LONG-TERM LtABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

Year EndinE
lune 30.

2044
2015
2076
2077
2074
20]'9 2023
2024-2024
2029 2033
2034-2034
Total

Princioal

$ a16.000
731,OO0
541,O00
561,O00
501,O00

1,905,000
1,747.000

3a5,OO0
101,OO0

hlerclt
$ 347,247

337,579
304,707
273,A2A
244,459
885,815
4o5,204
99,938

3,243---$-73-28,ooo 5r362,o-5s

4.

5.

LIMS Repayment Plan- During the fiscal year 2001-2002, the Municipatity authorized the
CRll'/ to retain the corresponding portion for the financing pro.ject of Land lnformation
N4anagement System - LIMS, contracted by the CRIM. A total of $746,093 is to be
retained in a ten years period at an interest rate of 5.95%, until November 28, 2012. At
June 30, 2013, the amount has been paid in full.

Compensated absenceg The government-wide statement of Net position includes
$1,067,035 of accrued sick leave benefits, and approximately $1,718,514 of accrued
vacation benefits, representing the Municipality's commitment to fund such costs from
future operations.

Claims and Judgments - This amount represents the balance related to legal claims at
June 30, 2013, as described in Note 15.

Landfill obligation- State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to place
a final cover on its landfill site when closed and perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. ln accordance with
Statement No. 18 of the GASB, "Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and
Post Closure Care Costs", the Municipality has performed a study of the activities that
need to be implemented at the Municipality's landfill to comply with applicable state and
federal regulations. During June 30, 2004, the Municipality entered in an agreement with
a contGctor to complete the final cover of the landfill for a total cost of $873,569 and
additional inspection, monitoring, and supervision costs amounting to $90,079 for a total
cost of $963,648. Amounts paid to contractors, related to closing costs prior to the current
fiscal year totaled $957,886. As of June 30, 2013 a total of $8,379 were paid to others
suppliers related to closing cost. Based on this, the Municipality has recognized $20,383
as the Municipality's estimated current cost for landfill closure as of.June 30, 2013. The
preliminary annual estimate of post closure costs has been adjusted to approximately
$1,950,000 for a period of approximately 25 years. Actualcosts may be different dueto

6.

7.
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

inflation, changes in technology, or changes in laws and regulations. As of June 30, 2013,
the Municipality's landfill facilities have been closed. The balance of closure and post-
closure costs of $20,383 and $1,950,000, respectively, are reported in the government-
wide statement of Net pos,tion.

12.PENSION PLAN

The Employee's Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its lnstrumentalities (the
Retirement System) is a cost-sharing multiple defined benefit pension plans sponsored by,
and reported as a component unit ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. All regular employees
of the Municipality under 55 years of age at the date of employment become members of the
Retirement System as a condition to their employment.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to
legislation enacted by the Commonwealth's legislature. Disability retirement benefits are
available to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Retirement benefits
depend upon age at retirement and the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest
after ten years of plan participation.

lvembers who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of
creditable service or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten
years of creditable service are entitled to an annual benefit payable monthlyfor life.

The amount of the annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation, as
defined, multiplied by the number of ypars of creditable service up to twenty years, plus two
percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of
creditable service in excess of 20 years. ln no case will the annuity be less than $200 per
month.

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entjtled to receive
the Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent
of the average compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the
average compensation, as defined. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a
refund of his/her accumulated contributions.

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5.775yo for the first $550 of their
monthly gross salary and 8,275% fot lhe excess over $ 550 of monthly gross salary. The
Municipality is required by the same statute to contdbute 9.275% of lhe participant's gross

salary.

On September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act. No. 447 of May 15, 1951 (which created the
Retirement System), was enacted with the purpose of establishing a new pension program
(System 2OO0). Employee's participation in the current system as of December 31, 1999,
may elect to stay in the defined benefit plan or transferto the new program. Personsjoining
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12.PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

the Municipality on or after January 1, 2000, will only be allowed to become members of
System 2000. System 2000 will reduce the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those
employees whojoined the current plan on orafter April 1, 1990,

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under
this new plan, there will be a pool of pension assets, which will be invested by ERS together
with those of the current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico will not
guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity will be based on a formula which assumes
that each year the employee's contribution (with a minimum ol 8.275% to the employee's
salary up to a maximum of 10yo) will be invested in an account which will either: (1) earn a

fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury Note or, (2) earn a rate equal to
757o of the return of the ERS'S investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) earn a

combination of both alternatives. Participants will receive periodic account statements similar
to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability pensions will
not be granted under System 2000. The employer's contribution (9.275% of the employee's
salary) will be used to fund the current plan.

lf at the time of retirement accumulated benefits amount to $10,000 or less may elect to
receive a lump sum distribution up to the accumulated benefits. Under the new program the
retirement age is reduced from 65 to 60 for those employees who joined the current plan on
or afterApril 1, 1990.

Fundin{ Policy

The authority under which the funding policy and the obligations to contribute to the ERS and
System 2000 by the plans' members, employers and other contributing entities (state and
municipal contributions), are established or may be amended by law.

Contribution requirements are established by law and are as follows:

Municipality
Employees:

Hired on or before March 31, 1990

Hired on or before April 1, 1990

9.275% of gross salary

5.7757o of gross salary up to $6,600
8.275%o of gross salary over $6,600
8.275% of gross salary

Annual Contributlon

The Municipality contributions during those years are recognized as total pension

expenditures/expenses in the category of administration as follows:
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12.PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Fiscalvear

20L3

2012

20LL

Law No. 447

$__344.902

$ 344-089

$ r69.el0

Svstem 2OOO

$ 2642L2
$ _267.e1l]

$- _ 
"67J30

These amounts represented the 10070 of the required contribution for the corresponding year.
Additionally, changes made in the types and amounts of benefits offered by special laws and
cost of living adjustments, led to a one tine recommended contribution to fund the retroactive
adjustment related to the changes.

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2013, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement System,
Minillas Station, PO Box 42003, San Juan, PR 00940-2003.
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14.RISK MANAGEIVIENT

The Property Division is responsible of assuring that the Municipality's property is properly
insured- Annually, the Property Division compiles the information of all property owned and its
respective market value. After evaluating this information, the Property Division submits the
data regarding the Municipality's properties to the Public lnsurance Department at the
Treasury Department of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico who is responsible for purchasing
all property and casualty insurance policies of all municipalities. Settled claims have not
exceeded commercial coverage in any ofthe past three fiscalyears.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a. Claims and lawsuits:

The Municipality is a defendant in a number of lawsuits arising principally from the ordinary
course ofthe Municipality s activities.

With respect to pending and threatened litigation, the Municipality has reported liabilities of
$392,975 for awarded or anticipated unfavorable judgments in the Government-Wide
Financial Statements. This amount was included in the financial statements and represents
the amounts estimated as a probable liability or a liability with a fix or expected due date,
which will require future available financial resources for its payments.

It is the management's opinion, based on the advice of the legal counsel, that the potential
claims against the Municipality not covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial
resources for its payment.

b. FederalGrants:

The Municipality participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs funded by

the Federal Government. Expenditures finance by these programs are subject to financial and
compliance audits by the appropriate grantor or grantee. The amount, if any, of expenditures
which may be disallowed by such audits cannot be determined at this time, although the
lVunicipality management expects such amounts, if any, will not be material.

c. Other Commitments:

At June 30, 2013, the general fund had commitments of approximately $\45,707 tot
executory purchase orders or contracts that will be honored during the subsequent year.
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16.FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements that have effective dates afterJune 30, 2013:

a. GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previous, Reported as Assets and Liabilities). The requirements
of this statement are effective for pe ods beginning after December 15,2012.

b. GASB Statement No. 66, Technical conections'2o72 - an amendment of GASB statemerts No.

70 and No.62. The requiremenls of this statement are effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2012.

c. GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Repofting td Pension Phnsnn afiendment of GASB

Statement No. 25. The requirements of this statement are effective for periods begnning after
June 15,2013.

d. GASB Statement No. 68 Accountirg and Financial RepoftinE for Pensions-an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27. The requirements of this statement are effective for periods beginning
afterJune 15,2014.

The impact of these statements on the Municipality's basic financial statemenls has not yet been

determined.

17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

A. GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following restatements have been made in the governmental fund financial
statements, which are reported as an adjustment to the beginning fund balances:

$ 57,611 t $ 12,205,430 $ 4,0a7353 $ a,4€,6a1 $ 359,74a $27.749.€a

12.694.49sr -p.a€4,899

l r59-7rul l2to5:L539,,gpErcJ - "ro, L- !--s,"10.531 s4sl!!! i a-48-6!1
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17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. GOVERNMENTAL WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following restatements have been made in the governmental wide financial statements'

which are reported as an adjustmentto the beginning Net position:

Governmental Business"type

Descriotlon

Net oos tion, beg nning

To adjust ovectated rund balance

To adlustgeneral ongtem debt

Net postion, beg nningas restated

A!t!!t!E
$ a4,923,966

(2,694,899)

484.0O0

$ 822l3n67

Acilviti6

$ 2,210,900

$ 2210-900

&!al
$ a7,134,866

(2,694,899)

4a4.000

$ t4l2ir96z

1A. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Act. No 3 of April 4, 2013

On April 4, 2013, the Governor of Puerto Rico signed into law Act No' 3 of 2013, which represents

a comprenensive reform of the ERS. Act No. 3 became effective on July 1, 2013 and amends the

proviiions of tfre different benefits structures under the ERS, including, but not limited' to the

following:

. For active participants of the contributory defined benefit programs under Act No' 447 of

rgsl ano Act lo. 1of 1990, alt retirement benefits accrued throughJune 30, 2013 will be

rro."n, .na tnereatter, all future benefits will accrue under the defined contribution formula

used for System 2O0O participants, and will be paid at retirement through a lifetime annuity'

. lncreases the minimum pension for current retirees from $4OO to $500 per month'

. The retirement age for Act No. 447 participants will be gradually increased from age 58 to age

61.

. The retirement age for current System 2OOO participants is increased gradually from age 60 ti

age 65.

. Eliminates the "merit annuity" available to participants who joined the ERS prior to April 1'

1990.

. The retirement age for new employees is increased to age 67'.except for nel'v state and

,rni"ip"i pofi"" o:ffi"ers, firefighters, and custody officers' which will be age 58'

. The employee contribution rate will increase from 8 275% to 1O%'
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1A. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (CONTINUED)

For System 2000 participants, the retirement benefits will no longer be paid as a lump sum
distribution, instead, they will be paid through a lifetime annuity.

Eliminates or reduces various retirement benefits previously granted by special laws, including
Christmas and summer bonuses. The Christmas bonus payable to current retirees is reduced

from $600 to $200 and is eliminated for future retirees. The summer bonus will be

eliminated.

. Disability benefits will be eliminated and substituted for a mandatory disability insurance
policy.

. Survivor benefits will be modified.

ln addition, the Commonwealth has proposed incremental annual contributions from the General

Fund of $140 million per year, for the next 20 years, to increase the liquidity and solvency of the

ERS. An appropriation for such annual contribution has been included in the Commonwealth's
proposed budgetfor the fiscalyear 2014.

Based on current census data, expectations of market conditions and other actuarial information
provided by consulting actuaries, the changes instituted by Act No. 3, along with the additional

annual contributions of $140 million to be received from the Commonwealth during the next 20
years, will be sufficientto coverthe System's current and future obligations.

The successful implementation of these measures cannot be assured' as it is dependent upon

future events and circumstances whose outcome cannot be anticipated.

On June 30, 2013, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico enacted Acts No.40 through No' 48 (also

known as the Comprehensive Tax Reform Acts), which amended the following Acts, Regulations

and Codes: 1) the Puerto Rico lnsurance Code under Act No. 77 of June 19, 1957, as amended,

2) the Property Tax Act under Act No. 83 of 1991, 3) the Savings and Loans Cooperatives Act

u;der Act No. 255 ot 2OO2, as amended, 4) the Puerto Rico Sales Tax Financing Corporation

(COFINA) Act under Act No. 91 of 2006, 5) several articles of Act No. 1of 2011(also known as

itre tnteinat Revenue code for a New puerto Rico), 6) the Fiscal Reform Act of 2006 under Act No.

103 of 2006, 7) Act No. L64 of 2OO1, and 8) Act No. 221 of Mav 15, 1948 All these

amendmentsaredesignedtoachieve,amongotherthings,anexpansionoftherevenuebaseof
the general fund of th; commonweatth of puerto Rico, and are expected to bring additional and

conslstent tax revenue. The aforementioned amendments involve, among other changes, the

imposition of the sales and use taxes to certain business to business transactions, as defined'

previously excluded, and other procedural changes (Acts No's. 40 and 42)'
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18. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (CONTINUED)

Act. No. 18 of 2014

On January 24, 2OI4, was signed the Act No. 18 of 2Ot4, to create the "Law of lvunicipal
Administration Fund", to establish a special fund called the Municipal Administration, authorize

municipalities to pledge the funds deposited in the Local Government Fund to which they are to
secure the repayment of any loan, bond, note or other evidence of debt, whose repayment source

are the funds deposited in the Special Fund and to meet any expenditure budget of the
municipality and the municipality any activity or project, authorize the Government Development

Bank for Puerto Rico to make disbursements for the purposes set out in this Act, amend
paragraph (b) of Section 4020.01, amend paragraph (b) of Section 4020.02, and amend
paragraph (a) and to repeal paragraph (e) of Section 6080.14 of the Act No. 1-2011, as amend'
known as the "lnternal Revenue Code for a New Puerto Rico", in order to restructure the sales

and use tax so that the tax rate is six (6) percent state level and one (1) percent at the municipal

level.

Act. No 19 0f 2014

On January,24,2014, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico enacted Act No. 19 (also known as the
Municipal Financing Corporation Act), to authorize the creation of a public corporation and

instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, attached to the Government Development

Bank for Puerto Rico knows as "Municipal Financing Corporation' (COFIM' by its acronyms in

Spanish), with the power to issue and/or use other mechanisms to pay or reflnance the debt

incurred by the municipalities, whose payment of principal and interest is supported by municipal

sales and use taxes; establish that the first collections of municipal sales and use tax of one

percent (1%) will be collected by municipalities and deposited directly to the Redemption Fund of

ihe Municipal Financing Corporation; establish that bonds and obligations issued by the

"N4unicipal iinancing Corporation" will be payable and secured by the pledge of the greater of (i) a

fixed amount of the municipal sales and municipal tax or (ii) the amount of the municipal sales

and use tax fixed at zero point three percent (o-3%) collected during the previous fiscal year; and

amend the paragraph (c) of section 4050.06, amend paragraph (a) of section 4050 07, amend

paragraph (a) and (b) of section 4050.08, amend paragraph (a) of section 4050'09' and amend

paraErapns (.n), (c) and (d), repeal paragraph (e) and renumber paragraph (0 as (e) of sedion

boso-.14 oftne l"t f-2011, as amended, known as the "lnternal Revenue code for a new Puerto

Rico".

Bond and Notes lssuances

On January 1, 2013, the Municipal Legislature approved the issuance of a general obligation note

for the amount of $620,000, due in installments of $7o,ooo to $110'oo0 for the acquisition of

equipment and bond issuance cost. Repayment of the note is scheduled frcm )uly t' 2044

through July 1, 2020.
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18. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (CONTINUED)

On August 19, 2013, the lvunicipal Legislature approved the issuance of a general obligation

note forthe amount of $6,940,000, due in installments of $195,0o0 to $5,600,000 construction

and improvements of infrastructure. Repayment of the note is scheduled frcm July 1',2074
through July 1, 2020.

On November 27, 2013, the Municipal Legislature approved the issuance of a general obligation

bond for the amount of $1,141,000, due in installments of $15,000 to $101,000 for property

acquisitions. Repayment ofthe note is scheduled from July 1, 2009 through July 1' 2033'

OnNovember2T,2013,theMunicipalLegislatureapprovedtheissuanceofageneralobligation
bond for the amount of $93O,OOO, due in installments of $15,000 to $85,000 for construction

and improvements of infrastructure. Repayment of the note is scheduled from July 1, 2009

through July 1, 2028.

On November 27.2013, the Municipal Legislature approved the issuance of a general obligation

bondfortheamountof$3,T2O,OOO,dueininstallmentsof$Oto$310,000forconstructionand
improvements of infrastructure. Repayment of the note is scheduled from July 1, 2008 through

]Uly 1,2032.

On January l, 2OL4,lhe Municipal Legislature approved the issuance of-a general obligation

ronJtor tn" amount of $1oo,ooo, due in instalments of $5,o00 to $10,000 for the acquisition

of equipment and bond issuance cost Repayment of the note is scheduled frcm )uly 7' 2014

through July 1, 2028.

On January !,2074, lhe lvunicipal Legislature approved the issuance of a general obligation

oonJ toi in. amount of $3,230,000-, due in installments of $70,000 to $295'000 for

constrrction anO irnprovements of infrastructure. Repayment ofthe note is scheduled from July 1'

2014 through JulY 1, 2033
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1, STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BudEetarv Control

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting,

which is not in accordance with USGMP, and represents departmental appropriations
recommended by the Mayor and approved by the Municipal Legislature prior to the
beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the
Municipal Legislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as lvayor's
Resolutions, do not require the approval ofthe Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general

fund. For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances
(i,e., purchase orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For

USGMP reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as

reservations of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because

the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year.

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse

at the end of such fiscal year' Other appropriations, mainly capital project

appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the I/unicipal Legislature has

authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made

available for current spending.

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund

is the budget ordinance at June 30, 2013 representing the original budget There were

no supplemental appropriations for the year ended lune 30, 2013'

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

Notes to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule
- General Fund
Ju.e 30, 2013



AiBers

Curont assets cash

cash -un restdcted

Cash -other restricted

Receivable

Fraud Recovery

Total cur.ent assets

Capital assets

Furniture, equipment & machinery-Administration

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Uabllltles and ltel Position

Net position

Net investment in caPital as.sets

Restricted net P6ition
ljnrestricted net Pocition

Total net pocition

243,343

47,770

45,076

370,189

_i__9r9,1!s

53,311
(53,311)

104,304

265,481

Total liabilities and net position

370,189

$ 370,183

See notes to the Financial Data Schedule.
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Rovenues

Housing assistance payments

Ongoing administrative fee earned

Total HIJD PHA operating revenues

lnvestment lncome - llnr€strided

Other rcvenues

Total revenues

Exp€nses

opelating - administrative expenses

Administrative salaries

Other general expenses

Total oPrating expenses

Housin!! Assistance Payments

HAP Ponabilitrin

Depreciation

Totalexpenses

Othor ffnancing uses

Transfer out

Excess (Deficiency) of total revenue over (under) total expenses

Total net posltlon, bogllnninfl

Total net po6ition, ending

$ 1,643,095

446,724

4,429,249

40342
80,626

r,920,147

425,627

15,670

744,297

4,724,749

75,169

1,947,255

(21,068)

39r.257

$ 370,189

-See notes to the Financial Data Schedule.

68

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AT,IONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

Financial Data Schedule
Statement of Revenues and Erpealses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013



1, BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Financial Data Schedule (FDS) presents the financial position of the Section 8
Housing Choice Voucher Program, administered by the l\-4unicipality. The FDS was created in order to
standardize the financial informalion reported by the Public Housing Authorities (PHA) to the Real Estate

Assessment Center (REAC)as required bythe Uniform Financial Reporting Standards (UFRS). REAC is the
US Depanment of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) national management center created to
assess the condition of HUD owned and assisted pro@rties The UFRS are rules to implement
requirements of 24 CFR, Part 5, Subpart H, for the electronic filing offinancial information to HU0.

2. SUMIVIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ln accordance with the guidelines for reporting and attestation requirements of IJFRS, the accompanying
FDS is included as information supplemenlary to the financial statements. lt was prepared using the

accrual basis ofaccounting, as required by REAC regulations.
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Federal
CFDA

Number

Pass-through
Entity ldentirying

Number Expend itu res
Federal Grantor/Pasgthrough
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Department of Education:

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN

D EVELOPM ENT:

Direct Program:
Community Development Block Grant -
Section 1OB Loan Guarantees 74.244

Section I Housing Choice Voucher

Not Available

Not Available

L4.871

74.224 Not Available

14.24L Not Available

20.507

446,6L2

446,672

602,024

L,A29,279Program

Pass.through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Office ofthe Commissioner of
[runicipal Affairs:

Community Development Block Grant -

State Program

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Municipality of San Juan:

Housing Opportunities for Persons with
AIDS (HOPWA)

Total US, Department of Housing and

Urban Development

U.S DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Direct Program:
Federal Transit- Formula Grants(Recovery
Act Funded)

1,631,160

30,048

4,O92,45!

85,337

85,337
Total U.s. Department of Trarlsportation
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Federal Grantoy'Pass-through
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Federal
CFDA

Number

Pass-through
Entity

ldenfrying
Number Expend itures

U.S DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY:

Direct Program:
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block
Grant Program (RecoveryAct Funded) At.72A

Total U.S. Department of Ener6/

U.s DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SERVICES:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Governor's Office (oGAVE) (Cluster of
Programs)

Special Programs for Aging - Title lll, Part
C - Nutrition Services 93.045

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SERVICES: (CONTINUED)

Head Staft Clusten
Direct Program:

Early Head Start 93.600

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Administration for Children and
Families (ACUDEN):

Head Start Program 93.600

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human

Se]vices

TOTAL BGENDITURES OF FEDERAL

AWARDS

44,102

44,LO2

Not Available 199,788

Not Available 1,303,360

Not Available 3,224,t56

4,731,304

$9,399,806

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis schedule
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A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado and is presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The basis of accounting is the same used to prepare the fund
financial statements. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, and Non-prcfit
Organizations.

B. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDEML FINANC1AL REPORTS:

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule are included in the Special Revenue
Fund-Head Start, Capital Project Fund- Federal grants and Other Governmental Funds jn
the lMunicipality's fund financial statements. The reconciliation between the expenditures
in the fund financial statements and the expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is as follows:

Description Special

Head Stan

Capital
Projects
Federal
Grants

Other Total
Govemmental

Funcb

Per Schedule of Expenditures of Federal

Non federal programs Expenditures

Total expenditures and other financing
uses in the baslc financia I statements

$ 4,531,516 $ 742,675 $ 4,a25.675 $ 9,399.806

4,225 332,!37 333,362

$ 4,532,74L $ 1-,074,752 $ 4,125,675 $ 9,733,16a
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Lipez-Vega, CPA, PSC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COIIPLIANCE AND OTH ER IVIATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATETVIENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENI AUDITING STA DARDS

To the Honorable luayor
and the Municipal Legislature
Autonomous Municipality ot Dorado
Dorado, Puerto Rlco

we have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the united states of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditingstandarcls
issued by the comptrorler Generar of the united states, the financiar statements of the governmentar
activities, each majorfund, and the aggregate remainingfund information ofAutonomous Municipality
of Dorado, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which correctivery comprise autohomous Municiparig of Dorado's basic financiar
statements and have issued our report thereon dated.rune 30. 2013.

lnternal Control overFlnancial Reporting

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Autonomous
Municipality of Dorado's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances forthe purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financiar statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Autonomous Municlpality ot Dorado's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of Autonomous Municipallty of Dorado,s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normalcourse of performingtheir assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A materia, weakness is a deficiency, or a
combanation of deficiencies, an internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or c,etected and
corrected on a timely basis. A signif,bant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies. in
internal controlthat is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limned purpose described in the first pa€graph ofthis
section and was not designed to identitr/ all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. civen these limitations, during our audit we did not identiry any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. we did identiry certain cteficiencies in internal
control, described in the accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs. as item 13-01. that
we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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lipez-Vega, CPA, PSC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIII SrIiiMtri]rS PTNTONTVCO

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AIJDMNG SIANDARDS (CONIINUED)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Autonomous luunicipalty of Dorado,s
financial statements are free from materiar misstatement, we performed tests of iL compriance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
courd have a direct and materiar effect on the determination of fana nc ia r statement amounts. However,providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests dlsclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported undet Govehment Auditin|
Sta/,dalds.

Autonomous Municlpality of Dorado,s Response to Findings

Autonomous rtruniciparrty of Dorado's response to the findings identified in our audit is c,escribed in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Autonomous Municipality of Dorado,s
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe financialstatements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Pueose ot lhls Report

The purpose of this repo.t is sorery to describe the scope of our testing of internar contror and
compliance and the resurts of that testing, and not to provide an opinion o; the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This repon is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Govehment Auditing standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

,/yt&",n u
LOPEZ VEGA, CPA, PSC

San luan, Puerto Rico
March 28,201-4

Stamp No.2675833 ofthe Puerto Rjco
Society of Certlfied Pu blic Accounta nts
was affi\ed to the record copy of this report.

C€nified Plblic Accounr

Lipcz-Vega, C PA, PSC

uts / Measemenr Adviso6
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Municipal Legislature
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado
Dorado, Puerto Rico

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal progam

We have audited the Autonomous Municipality o, Dorado,s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements descrjbed in the OMB Circulat A-733 Compliance Supplement lhal
could have a direct and material effect on each of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado,s
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013_ The Autonomous Municipality of
Dorado's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor,s results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and granG applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Autonomous
Municipality of Dorado's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in covernment Audjting Standards, issued
by the Comptroller cenerat of the United States; and OMB Circular A-134, Audits of States,
Local Govemments, and Non Profit Otganrzations. Those standards and OMB Cjrcular A_133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado,s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Autonomous Municipality o, Dorado,s compliance.

Cenified Public Accounrors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 (CONTINUED)

Opinion on Each Major Federal program

ln our opinion, the Autonomous Municipality ot Do.ado complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and materiar
effect on each of its ma.jorfederal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Other Matterc

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are
required to be reported in accordance with oMB circular A-133 and which are described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 13{2 and 13-t)3. Orrr
opinion on each major program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Autonomous Municiparity of Dorado's response to the noncompriance findings identified in
our audits is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado,s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on lnternal Conttol over Compliance

Management of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. ln plannlng and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado,s internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each ma.ior federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Clrcular A_133,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Autonomous
Municipality ot Dorado's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control ovet compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weak ess
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there js a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control ovet compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 (CONTINUED)

our consideration of internar contror over compriance was for the rimited purpose descrrbed in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify a defici;ncies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
we did not identify any deficiencies in internar contror over compriance that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 13-02 and 13-03 that we consider to be sjgnificant deficiencies,

The Autonomous Municipality of Dorado's response to the internal control over compliance
findings identifled in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. Autonomous Municipality of Dorado,s response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

We also noted other matters involving the internal control over compliance and certain
immaterial instance of noncompliance, which we have reported to management of the
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado in a separate letter dated March 29,2O!4.

The purpose of this report on internal control is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. However,
this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

./ytil",n u
LOPEZ-VEGA, CPA, PSC

San Juan, Puerto Rico
Match 28,2014

Stamp No. 2675834 ofthe Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy ofthis report

Cenified Public Accorniaots / Mdrscm.nr AdvisoB
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Section I - Summary ofAuditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

lnternal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified?
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to
be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federat awards

lnternal Control over major programs:
Material weakness identified?
Significant deficjencies identified not considered to
be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Circular
A-133, Section .510(a)?

ldentification of major programs:

CFDA ilumber Name of FederalProgEm or Ctuster

tinmodified

Yes

Yes X

Yes

Yes

Yes X

NoX

None reported

NoX

Nox

None reported

Yes X No

44.87L

93.600
93.600

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type I programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section 8 nousing Cnoce VoiifrEiF,og- 

-

Head Start Cluster:
Head Stan Program
Early Head Start

$ 300,000

Yes No X

78

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALIW OF DORADO

Schedule ot Findings and euestloned Costs
For the FiscalYear Ended.lune 30, 2013



Section ll - Financial Statements Findings

FlndingReference 13-01

Requlrement

Statement of Condition

Financial Reporting - Accounting Records

During our examination of the Municipality,s accounting system, we
noted that the l\4unicipality's accounting records for its Local, State and
Federal Funds does not provide modified basis financial statements.
Also, the accounting system does not offer subsidiaries to produce
government-wide financial statements. The computerized system
authorized by the Office ofthe Commissioner of Municipat Affairs (OCAM)
and manual systems maintained by the finance department personnel,
do not provide adequate and effective financial information to generate
the basic financial statements since the account balances were affected
by accounting errors in the first years ofthe system operations.

Therefore, the Municipality hires the professional services of local
accounting firms to pedorm the required adjustment entries to convert
its accounting records from cash basis to modified and then to accrual
basis and compile the necessary information as required by GAAP and
State Act 81.

Article 8.010 of State Act Number 81 of August 30, 1991 states that the
lVunicipality should maintain an effective and updated accounting
system.

The Municipality did not establish effective internal control over the
transactions recorded on its accounting records. Also, the accounting
data is not summarized in the form of a double-entry general ledge;
record.

The Municipality accounting system did not provide updated and
complete financial information that present the financial position and
the result of operations and the change in fund balances. Such
information is necessary to take management decisions.

We recommend that the l/unicipality should establish internal control
procedures in order to maintain an accounting slstem that contains
information pertaining to authorizations, obligations, unobligated
balances, assets, liabilities, ouflays or expenditures, interfund
transactions, etc.

Criteria

Effect ofc6ndiiion

Recommendation
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Section ll - Financial Statements Findings

FindingRelerence 13-01(Continued)

questioned Costs

Management Response

And Correctlve Action

None

The Commissioner of Municipal Affairs ("OCAM"), amended the Law so
that the Municipality, could select the accounting system, according to
the Generally Accepted Accounting principles. The N4unicipatity is in thefinal stages of setecting the accounting software and eipects its
implementation jn the beginning ofthe next flscalyear.

lmplementation date: )uly, 2O!4

Responsible Person: Mr. Luis R. Sierra Salgado_ Finance Director
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Section lll - Mayor FederalAward program Findings and Questioned Costs

FindingReference L3-O2

Requirement

statement of condition

Program

C tera

Head Start (CFDA. No.93.600); U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services
Early Head Stan (CFDA. No.93,600); U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services.

Cash Management

During our Cash Management Test to Head Start program, we found the
following exceptions:

a. We noted that the Program requested funds that were not disbursed
on a reasonable lapse of tjme.

b. During three (3) months the bank reconciliations reflected an
overdraft.

ln our Cash Management Test of Early Head Start program, we found the
following;

a. During three (3) months the bank reconciliations reflected an
overdraft.

Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 92,20 lb) (7),
requires a cash management system in order to minimize the tjme
elapsed between the transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and the
disbursements made by the grantee.

There are no adequate internal controls to assure that funds requested
to the federal agency are disbursed for immediate needs.

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 45,
Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (7).

Cause of Condition

Effect of Condition
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Section lll - Mayor Federal Award program Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Reference

Recommendation

13{2 (Continued)

We recommend management to follow cash management system
procedures developed by it in order to assure that funda request;d are
disbursed as required by the regulation.

NoneQuestioned Costs

Management Response
and corrective Action
for Head Start
Program

The l\4unicipality's Management concurs with the auditor,s
recommendation.

lmplementation Datei Aptil, 2OL4

Responsible Person: lVrs. Sarahi Mel6ndez - program Director
Mrs. Teresa Acevedo - Program Accountant

The Municipality's Management concurs with the auditor's
recommendation.

lmplementation Date: January, 2015

Responsible Person: Mrs. Sarahi Mel6ndez - program Director
lVrs. Grimaldi Zabaleta - Program Accountant

Illanagement Response
and corrective Action
for Ea y Head Start
ProgEm
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Section lll - Major FederalAward program Findings and Questioned Costs

FindingRererence 13-03

Program Head start (CFDA. No.93.600);
Services

U.S. Department of Health and Human

Requirement

Early Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600); U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services.

ReportingTest

Statement ot Condition ln our Reporting Test, to Early Head Start program, we observed the
following exceptions:

a, The Federal Financial Report (SF-42S) for the periods ended on
3/37/73, 6/30/73, 9/30/73 and L2/3L/ 13 werc not submitted in
the stipulated tlme. The Municipality made the submission between
one (1) to eighteen (18) days after the due date.

b. We found differences between the amounG in the Federal Financial
Report with General Ledger and Supporting Documents.

ln our Reporting Test, to Head Start program, we observed the following
exceptions:

a. The Federal Financiat Report (SF-425), [4onthty Reports, Funds
Liquidation Report and Trial Balance for the period ended on
2/28/L3 werc not submitted in the stiputated time_ The Municipatity
made the submission between one (1) to twenty (20) days after the
due date-

b. We found differences between the amounts reported in the monthly
"ln Kind" certifications details and the amounts detailed in the
general ledger from March 2OL2 to February 2013. Also we found
differences between the amounts reported in the monthly reports of
expenditures of federal funds and the federal expenditure amount
reported in the Quarterly Federal Financial Report (SF-425).

The expenditures detailed in the monthly financiat reports are based
on estimates. As result, the financial reports are not in accordance
with the program accounting records. The differences in the monthly
reports were adjusted, but we couldn,t reconcile the adjustments
with the reports. The ad.justments in the project Expenditure Report
were for $(966,213) as of February 2013.
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Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Relerence

Cfiteria

Cause of Condition

Effect of condition

Recommendation

Management Response
and corectlve Action
for Head Stan
Program

1343 (Continued)

Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (1), states
that the grantee must maintain internal control procedures that permits
proper tracing of funds to the accounting records. Also, it requires
accurate, current and complete disclosure offinancial results.

Adequate internal controls do not exist to assure the correctness of
closing reports submitted to the federal agencies.

The program is not in compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations
45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (1).

we recommend the Program to establish monitoring procedures to
assure the accuracy of accounting records and a correct completion of
the closing reports. The program fiscal area must establish adequate
communication channels with the Finance Department in order to obtain
documental evidence related to obligations issued, cash receipt and

disbursements in a daily manner, in order to be posted in the accounting
register maintained by the Program. The Program fiscal area most
assures that accounting records are updated at the end of each month

in order to prepare accurate reports to the federal agency. ln addition

the accountant must assure that the cash register and the general

ledger are duly reconciled and .iournal entries posted in the general

ledger and duly documented and explained. We consider that the

Program Director must evaluate the implementation of a computer

accounting software to maintain the program books Due to the large

volume ofiransactions manual books are considered inefficient'

Management concurs with the auditor'sThe lvlunicipality's
recommendation.

lmplementation Datet Altil, 2O!4

Responsible Person: Mrs. Sarahi Mel6ndez - Program Director

I\4rs. Teresa Acevedo - Program Accountant
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Finding Reference

Management Response
and corrective Action
for Early Head Start
Program

13-03 (Continued)

The Municipality,s
recommendation.

Management concurs with the auditor,s

lmplementation Date: January, 2015

R€sponsible Person: Mrs. Sarahi lvel6ndez _ program Director
Mrs. Grimaldi Zabaleta - program Accountant

Section lll - Major FederalAward program Findings and Questioned Costs
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Original
Finding Cu rent Status of Prior Year Audit Federal Award FindinEls - pan Findin€is

CFDA No (As required by OIUB Circutar

72 02 93.600
93.709

DurinE our Cash lvana€ement Test to Head Start pro{ram. we found
the following exceotions: (al We noted that the proEram reouested

During two 12) months the bank reconciliations reflected an
overdraft. ln our Cash Manapement Test of ARRA Earlv Head Start
Program, we found the following: (a) We noted that the program
requested funds that were not disbursed on a reasonable laose of

an overdraft-

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. FindinE Reference 13-02.

t2-o3 93.600

Children and Families after the due date. (b)We found differences

ln our Reoorting Test. to Head Start program. we observed the
followinE exceotions: {a) The lVonthlv Financial Reoorts for.Januarv
2012 and Februarv 2012. and the Funds Liouidation and Trial
Balance for the Proqram Year ended on Februarv 2g. 2012. were
submitted to the Commonwealth of puerto Rico Administration for

monthlv financial reoorts (January and February 2012) and in the
Closing Reoort for the Fiscal year 2012 submitted to the oass-
throuEh agencv and the amounts detailed in the cash reEister and
the Eeneral ledqer. (c) The exoenditures detailed in the monthlv
financial reports are based on estimates. As result. the financial
reDorts are not in accordance with the oroqram accountin{ records.
Differences are not adiusted in the closinq reports. ln addition. we
noted that no adeouate procedures exist to document the

errors were identified in the Februarv 2012 Reouest of Funds and in
the Funds Liouidation form.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 13{3_

7t-o2 t4.a71
not comolv with the comoliance reouirement of Deoositorv
Agreements. The PHA is reouired to enter into deoositarv agreement
with their financial institutions in the form reouired bv HUD. (Form
HUp-51999).

Full corrective action was taken.
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Original
Finding Current Status of PioryearAudit FederalAward Findings - pan t Findtn€is

CFDA NO, reouiled bv OMB Cir.Dlrr

1103 L4.257

Partial corrective action was taken. The program established a
checklist of documents that should be included in the participant,s
files.

tt-o4 74.257

aporoximatelv $27.956. Also. at.June 30. 2011. the cash balance in

We oerformed a Cash N4anaqement Test and after our procedures.
we found that during the current fiscal vear. the propram
maintained a monthlv averaqe cash balance in books of

reconciliations reflected an overdraft. Also. in our Cash
N4anagement- Advance Test. we found that in seven (7) cases the
cash reouisition was not siEned bv a responsible official.

Full corrective action was taken.

11-05 74.257

the fiscal agent and the program director. (b) ln three (3) cases. the
Monthlv Exoenditure Reoort (Form HpRp 42g) available was not
siEned bv the oroqram director. (b) We found differences between

Expenditure Reoort (August, November. December 2O10 and
Februarv. l/arch 2011) and the amounts detailed in the €eneral
ledqer. {c) ln seven (7) cases. the Monthlv performance Reoort
(Form HPRP-33) was not available for our examination. (October
2010. Januarv. Februarv. March. Aoril. Mav and June 2011) (c) ln
three {3) cases. the Monthlv performance Reoort (Form HpRp-33}
was submitted to the Familv Deoartment after the due date. (July,
AuEust and November 2010) (d)We found differences between the
amounts reoorted as federal exoenditures in the Monthly
Performance Repoft (F

ln our ReoortinE Test. we observed the followin€ exceotions: {a) We
found footing error in the Monthlv Exoenditure Reoort (Form HpRp
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Original
Finding
Number CFDA No.

Current Status of Prior YearAudit Fede6tAward Findings - pan tFindings
(As required by OIVIB CircularA-133)

2010) and the amounts detailed in the qeneral ledger. This repoit
was made detailin( the amounts of two {2) months.

Partial corrective action was taken. The Program, as per funding
requirements, expected to issue all closing reports before due date.

11-06 93.600,
93.708

&
93.709

Durinq our Cash Management Test to Head Start Proeram. we found
the followinE exceotions: (a) We noted that the Proqram requested
funds that were not disbursed on a reasonable laose of time. (b)

DurinE two (2) months the bank reconciliations reflected an
overdraft. In our Cash l\ranagement Test of ARRA Earlv Head Start
ProEram. we found the followinp: la) We noted that the Prodram
reouested funds that ,xere not disbursed on a reasonable laose of
time. (b) Durinq nine I9) months the bank reconciliations reflected
an overdraft.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 13-02,

77 07 93.600,
93.708

&
93.709

Durine our eouroment test, to ARRA Earlv Head Stan Proftam. we
tound the followins exceotions: (a) The equioment was not marked
with orooertv tads. (b) ln three (3) cases, the equioment was not
included in the Propertv Subsidiarv Ledqer.

Full corrective action was taken.

11,08 93.600,
93.708

&
93.709

During our Matching Iest to ARRA Early Head Start ProEram. we
found differences between the amounts reoorted as cash or in,kind
contributions and federal expenditures detailed in the Federal
Fjnancial ReBort (Form 425) and the amounts detailed in the
general led€er. We can't verifl, if the Erantee contributed at least 20
oercent of the costs of the orogram. Also. we noted differences
between Federal Financial Report (Fotm 425) and suoDo(inp
documents. Our Matchinq Reouirements test for Head Start
Pro{ram revealed the followins: (a) The cash and ln-kind
contributions lecorded in the accountin{ record "Libro de Caia" fa
manual cash ledger) which belong to September 2010. did not
agree with the amounts recorded in the seneral ledser. A difference
of $9.924 was idedified. (b) The cash and ln-kind contributions
recorded in the accounting record "Libro de Caia" {a manual cash
ledqer) which belong to Januarv 2011. did not a€ree with the

88

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO Summary Schedule ot prior years Audit Findings
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO For the Fiscal year Ended June 30. 2013



CurrentStatus of PriorYearAudit FederatAward Findings - part It Findings
(As requiredCFDA No.

Original
Finding
Number OMB Circular

amounts recorded in the (enerat ted€en A diffeE6Ie oi$fI56 wEf
identified. (a) The cash and ln-kind contributions recorded in the
accountinE record "Libro de Caia" (a manual cash ledger) which
belons lvarch 2010 to Februarv 2011. did not asree wlth the
amounts recorded in the qeneral ledger. A difference of $10,976
was identified.

Full corrective action was taken.

11-09 93.600,
93.708

&
93.709

The accountin{ svstem maintained bv ARRA Earlv Head Start
Prosram did not orovide for the classification of financial
transactions between administrative and oro€rammatic costs. Also.
our EarmarkinE test (15% Administrative Cost Limits) for Head Start
Prooram revealed the following: (a) The oercentaee detailed in the
Others Cate{ories (Cash and ln-kind). inctuded in the Table to
Comoute 15% Administrative Cost was incorrecflv calculated {b) The
oercentaqe detailed in the Total PA 22 Federal and non-Federal.
included in the Table to Compute 15% Administrative Cost was
incorrectlv calculated. (c) The amounts detailed for Administrative
and ProErammatic Costs. for the Eouioment Account. did not a€ree
with the amounts included in the General LedEer. A difference of
$81.00 was identified.

Full corrective action was taken.

11-10 93.600,
93.708

&
93-709

ln our Reportinp Test. to Head Start Prodram. we observed the
followins exceotions: (a) The Monthlv Financial Reoort and the Table
to Compute 15% Administrative Cost for the oroEram vear ended
Februarv 28. 2011 were submitted to the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Administration for Children and Families after the due date. We
found differences between the amounts reoorted as federal
exoenditures in the monthlv financial reoorts (January and Februarv
20111 and in the Closins Reoort for the Fiscal Year 2011submitted
to the oass-through auencv and the amounts detailed in the cash
reeister and the general ledEer. (c)The expenditures detailed in the
monthlv financial reoorts are based on estimates. As result. the
financial reoorts are not in accordance with the Drogram accountind
records. Differences are not adiusted in the closinp reports. ln
addition. we noted that no adeouate orocedures exist to document
the adiustments oosted to the general ledger accounts. ln our
Reoortinq Test of ARRA Earlv Head Start Proqram: (a) We found
differences between the amounts reoorted as federal exoenditures
in the Federal Financial Repoft (Seotember 2011) and the amounts
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curentstatus of PriorYearaudit FedelalAward Findings - Part lllFindings
by OMB CirculalCFDA No.

Original
Finding
Number

':

det itealn th-e casF reptstei;a tlre aa al r e identifieq

iE-rences between the amounts reoorted in the Trial Balance and

the amounts detailed in the General LedEer

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for

the current year. Finding Reference 13-03.
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